
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Stuart Robinson 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74360 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 24 74707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 at 10.00 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
P Truswell - Middleton Park; 

G Hussain - Roundhay; 

T Murray - Garforth and Swillington; 

J Walker - Headingley; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

S Armitage - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

K Bruce - Rothwell; 

J Illingworth (Chair) - Kirkstall; 

S Varley - Morley South; 

S Bentley - Weetwood; 

M Robinson - Harewood; 
 

Co-optees 
Joy Fisher Leeds LINk 

Sally Morgan Equality Issues 
Betty Smithson Leeds LINk 
Emma Stewart Alliance of Service Users and Carers 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
AND OTHER INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.   Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19-20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 24th October 2012. 
 

1 - 10 

7   
 

  TRANSFORMATION OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL 
CARE SERVICES IN LEEDS 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the transformation of 
Health and Social Care Services in Leeds. 
 

11 - 
142 



 

 
D 

8   
 

  REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART 
SERVICES IN ENGLAND; JOINT HEALTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(YORKSHIRE AND THE HUMBER) - REFERRAL 
TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH 
(DRAFT REPORT) 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the review of Children's 
Congenital Heart Services in England; Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and 
the Humber) - Referral to the Secretary of State for 
Health (Draft Report). 
 

143 - 
152 

9   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development setting out a provisional 
work schedule for the Board for consideration. 
 

153 - 
180 

10   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday 19th December 2012 at 10.00am (Pre-
meeting for Board Members at 9.30am) 
 

 

 
 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH AND WELL-BEING AND ADULT SOCIAL 
CARE) 

 
WEDNESDAY, 24TH OCTOBER, 2012 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J Illingworth in the Chair 

 Councillors S Bentley, K Bruce, N Buckley, 
C Fox, M Harland, G Hussain, T Murray, 
P Truswell and S Varley 
 

  
           CO-OPTED MEMBERS: 
 
           Joy Fisher, Leeds LINk 
           Betty Smithson, Leeds LINk 
           Emma Stewart, Alliance of Service Users 
 
 

47 Chair's Opening Remarks  
The Chair welcomed everyone to the October meeting of the Scrutiny Board 
(Health and Well-being and Adult Social Care). 
 

48 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary and other Interests  
The following other significant interest was declared at the meeting:- 
 

• Joy Fisher (Leeds LINk) in her capacity as a member of the ‘Making it 
Real’ Expert Advisory Group involved with preparation of the document 
entitled ‘Better Lives Explained, a Leeds draft Local Account of Adult 
Social Care for 2012/13 (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 53 refers) 

 
49 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors M Robinson 
and J Walker and Sally Morgan, Co-optee (Equality Issues). 
 
Notification had been received for Councillor N Buckley to substitute for 
Councillor M Robinson and for Councillor M Harland to substitute for 
Councillor J Walker. 
 

50 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
Councillor P Truswell referred to the Review of Children’s Congenial Cardiac 
Services (Minute 39 refers) and asked for the Chair to provide an update on 
progress. 
 
The Chair informed the meeting that the issue had been referred to the   
Secretary of State for determination but there had been a delay in completing 
the supporting referral report from the Scrutiny Board and the Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber) (Joint HOSC), 
due to significant delays in obtaining all the relevant background information 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

from the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) and its supporting 
secretariat.  
 
Councillor T Murray enquired about the timescales in relation to this authority 
presenting a case to the Minister. 

 
The Principal Scrutiny Adviser informed the meeting that it was hoped to 
finalise the supporting referral reports and submitted within approximately 
four/five weeks. It was noted that an additional meeting of the Scrutiny Board 
(Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) may be required to agree the 
referral report. 
 
Joy Fisher, Leeds LINk referred to the Update on Recommendations following 
deputation to Scrutiny by the National Federation of the Blind (Minute 40 
refers) and informed the meeting that attendees in the audience at the last 
Board meeting had raised concerns that the debate had not been an honest 
account of the current situation. 
 
The Principal Scrutiny Adviser informed the meeting that the Head of Scrutiny 
and Member Development had received a letter from the National Federation 
of the Blind on this issue. A reply had been sent requesting specific details of 
any inaccurate and/or misleading information that had been presented to the 
Scrutiny Board.  The Principal Scrutiny Adviser also advised that to date no 
further details had been provided. 
 
In terms of the way forward, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser informed the 
meeting that a further dialogue was required with Service Users and that there 
would be discussions with the Chair around how the National Federation of 
the Blind might contribute to the discussion when the Scrutiny Board re-visited 
this issue later in the municipal year.   
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the update and additional information provided be noted. 
(b) That the minutes of the meeting held on 26th September 2012 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

51 2012/13 Performance Report - Quarter 1  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development introduced aspects of a 
report from the Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and 
Performance) deferred from the previous meeting.  The report summarised 
the performance against the strategic priorities for the council relevant to 
Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 

•••• Performance Reports for the four Health and Wellbeing City 
Priority Plan Priorities (Appendix 1 refers) 

 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

The following representatives were in attendance and responded to 
Members’ queries and comments:- 
 

•••• Councillor L Mulherin (Executive Board Member for Health 
and Wellbeing), Leeds City Council 

•••• Dr. Ian Cameron (Joint Director of Public Health) – NHS 
Airedale Bradford & Leeds/Leeds City Council 

 
At the request of the Chair, Councillor Mulherin and the Joint Director of 
Public Health reported on the public health elements of the report. In their 
respective presentations they focused on smoking and health inequalities 
as identified in the Health and Wellbeing City Priority Plan and provided 
the meeting with background information and on the measures and 
initiatives that were currently in place for both priority areas. 
 
Smoking 
 
A number of specific issues around smoking prevalence and reducing the 
level of smoking across the City, including the following matters, were 
highlighted and discussed: 
 

• Performance had plateaued – with fewer people attempting to stop 
smoking, and of those attempting to stop, fewer attempts were 
being made 

• Tackling the issue of niche tobacco was being addressed through a 
partnership approach with other authorities and West Yorkshire 
Trading Standards 

• Secured funding to undertake a peer review of the smoking action 
plan to assess its robustness and overall effectiveness 

• The health of employees and reducing potential exposure to 
second-hand smoke  

• The proposed introduction of smoke free zones immediately 
outside public buildings to limit general and potentially 
concentrated exposure to second-hand smoke 

• Interventions to prevent school-aged children smoking and Leeds 
work to contribute to the evidence base in this area, which was 
highlighted as being relatively weak (currently) 

• Issues and approaches associated with ‘changing behaviours’, 
generally and within specific communities, including BME 
communities  

• The need for multi-facetted interventions and approaches across a 
range of public health matters, including reducing levels of smoking 

 
Health Inequalities 
 
In relation to health inequalities, the Joint Director of Public Health 
reported that the data included within the report was out of date and that 
up-to-date data was expected in early November 2012. Reference was 
made to the overall number of deaths in Leeds and the number of deaths 
in deprived areas. Through a better understanding of the data (and the 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

underlying reasons) it was hoped to areas address issues of health 
inequalities across the City. 
 
A number of specific issues relating to health inequalities across the City, 
including the following matters, were highlighted and discussed: 
 

• Addressing issues associated with health inequalities and the 
relationship with successful delivery of the associated action plans on:  

o to ensure children have the best start in life;  
o to maximise income and reduce debt;  
o improve housing, transport and the environment;  
o increase employment and healthy workplaces;  
o to maximise educational attainment; and, 
o improve access to services that prevent and treat ill health 
 

Members requested copies of the current action plans and discussed 
the balance between targeting those area likely to provide ‘quick wins’ 
and those likely to have longer-term benefits 
 

• The need for multi-facetted interventions and approaches across a 
range of public health matters 

• Difficulties associated with measuring the differences in health 
outcomes between different areas of the City – particularly in terms of 
demonstrating progress.  This included discussion around the rationale 
for not using current life expectancy as the benchmark for measuring 
progress 

• An outline of the work currently being undertaken in the 3rd sector with 
Leisure/Children’s Services around physical activity and health 

 
RESOLVED – 

a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
b) That the specific information requested by individual Board Members 

be forwarded to the Principal Scrutiny Adviser for dissemination. 
c) That in consultation with the Principal Scrutiny Adviser, the Joint 

Director of Public Health be requested to submit a report to a future 
Board meeting on how the transfer of public health functions to the 
Council were being developed and progressed. 

 
52 Balancing the Council's duties as a planning authority with its future 

public health responsibilities  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to assist 
the Scrutiny Board’s consideration of issues associated with balancing the 
Council’s duties as a planning authority with its future public health 
responsibilities. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 

• Changes to Core Strategy Text (Appendix 1 refers) 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

• Core Strategy – Leeds Local Development Framework – Health 
Background Topic Paper – Publication Draft – February 2012 
(Appendix 2 refers) 

• Fair Society, Healthy Lives – The Marmot Review – Executive 
Summary – Strategic Review of Health Inequalities in England post 
2010 (Appendix 3 refers) 

• Public Health in Leeds City Council – New Responsibilities – Report of 
Director of Public Health – Executive Board – 20th June 2012 
(Appendix 4 refers) 

 
The following representatives were in attendance and responded to 
Members’ queries and comments:- 
 

- Councillor L Mulherin (Executive Board Member for Health and 
Wellbeing), Leeds City Council 

- Dr. Ian Cameron (Joint Director of Public Health) – NHS Airedale 
Bradford & Leeds/Leeds City Council 

- David Feeney (Head of Forward Planning and Implementation) –
City Development, Leeds City Council 

 
At the request of the Chair, the Head of Forward Planning and 
Implementation provided the meeting with the background context and 
reiterated that health was an important consideration within the Council’s 
overall Local Development Framework (LDF). 
 
The Head of Forward Planning and Implementation advised the Scrutiny 
Board that: 

• The Core Strategy would form part of the overall Local 
Development Framework (LDF) and a detailed site allocations plan 
would follow once the Core Strategy had been agreed 

• The details presented were approved for consultation by Executive 
Board in February 2012 

• Details of proposed changes to the consultation draft were included 
in the Scrutiny Board’s agenda papers 

• A report on the outcomes of the consultation is scheduled to be 
considered by Executive Board on 7 November 2012, prior to the 
proposed final version being presented to Full Council later in 
November 2012 

 
The Joint Director of Public Health advised the Scrutiny Board that Public 
Health had contributed to the development of the document presented to 
the Scrutiny Board.  The Joint Director of Public Health added that in 
considering the draft Core Strategy, he had considered three broad 
questions, namely: 

(1) Whether the Core Strategy reflected planning’s contribution 
to health; 

(2) Whether the Core Strategy covered the breadth of 
planning’s contribution to health; and, 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

(3) In terms of implementation, whether there was sufficient 
assurance that the health and wellbeing aspect of planning 
would become incorporated as developments occur 

 
The Joint Director of Public Health outlined that while the Core Strategy 
reflected the Council’s emerging Public Health duties/ responsibilities, he 
had felt that earlier drafts had underplayed some of the health challenges 
facing the City and the contribution of planning in helping to address such 
challenges. However, it was felt that initial concerns had been addressed 
and the current draft strategy included all the contributions that planning 
can make towards improving health across the City. 
 
Reference was also made to an additional document produced by Marmot 
(The Marmot Review: Implications for Spatial Planning), which provided 
evidence on the relationship between aspects of spatial planning, the built 
environment, health and health inequalities. 
 
In terms of implementation of the strategy/ framework, the Joint Director of 
Public Health welcomed the proposal to establish a health and planning 
reference group, to ensure the contribution and consideration of health 
issues much earlier in the planning process than had historically been the 
case. 
 
A number of specific issues were highlighted and discussed, including the 
following matters:  
 

• The general complexities associated with health and well-being 
and its relationship with inter-dependencies such as employment, 
income, housing, education and the built environment and 
consideration of how specific areas of the City that had historically 
had higher levels of deprivation, for example Burley, Chapeltown, 
Harehills, Beeston and other outer areas, would benefit from the 
development of the LDF Core Strategy  

• Concerns about the rapid Health Impact Assessment process 
adopted to consider the health implications / considerations of 
planning.  There was a general view that this perhaps reinforced 
and reflected the position that, historically, health implications were 
not considered early enough within the planning/ development 
processes.  Assurances were given by the Joint Director of Public 
Health that a much closer working relationship between City 
Development and Public Health had developed over recent months 
and that he was confident this would continue 

• Queries regarding the accuracy of the population growth 
projections (approx. 200,000 by 2033 (20 years), as this 
represented more than double the current health dynamic in the 
City (i.e. the difference between births and deaths) 

• Implications of the population growth projections on infrastructure 
across the City and the availability of affordable housing across the 
City.  It was outlined that changes to the affordable housing policy 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

were proposed, which would make the policy applicable to all 
residential developments (from 1 property upwards) 

• Subjectivity around the term ‘sustainable development’ and the 
need to maximise the development of brownfield (previously 
developed) sites to help control the expansion of urban areas 

• The anticipated guidance from the National Institute for Health and 
Clinical Excellence (NICE) regarding the relationship between 
planning and health.  Specifically, members queried how this and 
future guidance / best practice evidence would be taken into as 
part of specific future planning considerations/ proposals. The Joint 
Director of Public Health highlighted the importance of the ongoing 
involvement of Public Health professionals within the planning 
process. It was also stated that ensuring the most up-to-date 
guidance / evidence was considered would be a key role for Public 
Health professionals and would be a key responsibility of the Joint 
Director of Public Health 

• The general availability and/or provision of green space.  It was 
highlighted that this would form part of the ‘site allocation process’, 
which would consider where the different elements of the Local 
Development Framework (including green space, housing etc.) 
would be provided across the City.  There was a recognition of the 
difficulties associated with creating additional open/ green spaces 
in existing highly populated urban areas, however the Core 
Strategy aimed to help improve access to walking, cycling and 
green infrastructure across the City  

• The protection of playing pitches and where issues of re-provision 
elsewhere in the City were considered, the ‘elsewhere’ was key to 
those communities where the original provision may be lost 

• Securing job opportunities for local people through S106 
employment agreements.  It was highlighted that provision for such 
agreements was available within the LDF policy framework, 
however it was suggested that issues remained regarding the 
application and implementation of the policy 

 
Members also raised some issues relating to specific development’s and 
planning applications.  The Head of Forward Planning and Implementation 
responded in general terms but advised he was unable to address specific 
queries related to individual planning applications/ developments. 
 
Members of the Board were also advised that, as the Leeds Local 
Development Framework Core Strategy forms part of the council’s budget and 
policy framework, the Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) – as 
the relevant Scrutiny Board – would be invited to make any formal comments 
at its meeting on 1 November 2012, before the final draft was submitted to the 
Executive Board for recommendation to Full Council.   
 
RESOLVED- 

a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
b) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser ensure the points raised by the 

Scrutiny Board (Heath and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) were 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

reported to the Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 
– as the relevant Scrutiny Board – for consideration ahead of the 
final draft of the Core Strategy being submitted to the Executive 
Board for recommendation to Full Council. 

 
53 Better Lives Explained - Leeds draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 

2012/13  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report in relation 
to ‘Better Lives Explained’ –  Leeds’ draft Local Account of Adult Social Care 
2012/13. 
 
Appended to the report was a copy of the following document for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 

• Better Lives Explained – Our local account of Adult Social Care 
2012/13 – October 2012/13 

 
The following representatives were in attendance and responded to 
Members’ queries and comments:- 
 

• Mick Ward (Head of Commissioning) – Leeds City Council, Adult Social 
Services 

• Stuart Cameron–Strickland (Head of Policy, Performance and 
Improvement) – Adult Social Services, Leeds City Council 

 
At the request of the Chair, the Head of Policy, Performance and 
Improvement outlined the background information and informed the 
meeting that the document was still draft and subject to amendment. 
 
Members discussed the context of service delivery over recent years, 
including the projected £60m savings against a background of increase 
demand for services over the last five years.  
 
Members welcomed the overall style and format of the draft report.  Some  
specific issues were discussed and a number of potential improvements / 
amendments to the current draft were highlighted, including: 
 

• Confirmed accuracy of some of the information presented 
• Improvements to charts, diagrams and the associated legends 

throughout the documents, to ensure they were readable 

• Consideration be given to including a specific section on complaints 
• Confirmation that the contact numbers provided were correct 
• Inclusion of contact numbers for ‘one stop shops’ 
• Where possible, improved clarity within the performance data around 

what was being measured 
 
Members also sought clarification in relation to Neighbourhood Networks 
and the level of engagement with BME communities.  It was agreed that 
this information would be provided and disseminated to the Board.   
 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

Members discussed more detailed consideration of the personalisation 
agenda and issues associated with personal budgets, and agreed to 
consider this under the work schedule item (Minute 54 refers). 

 
RESOLVED – 

a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted and 
welcomed. 

b) That the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement use the 
comments made by the Scrutiny Board to make the necessary 
improvements to the current draft. 

c) That progress against the plans identified in Leeds’ Local Account of 
Adult Social Care 2012/13 be linked into the quarterly performance 
monitoring cycle and a progress report to be submitted to the Board 
meeting in March 2013. 

 
(Councillor G Hussain left the meeting at 12.05pm during discussions of 
the above item) 
 
(Councillor M Harland left the meeting at 12.15pm during discussions of 
the above item) 
 
(Councillor S Bentley left the meeting at 12.20pm at the conclusion of the 
above item) 

 
54 Work Schedule  

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
presented the Scrutiny Board’s outline work schedule for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for  
information/comment at the meeting:- 
 

• Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 
Municipal Year – Work Schedule (Appendix 1 refers) 

• Executive Board minutes of meetings held on 18th July 2012 and 5th 
September 2012 (Appendix 2 refers) 

 
The Principal Scrutiny Adviser, Scrutiny Support presented the report and 
a number of specific issues, including the following matters, were 
highlighted and discussed: 
 

• Consideration of the personalisation agenda, including national and 
local requirements within the work schedule (likely to be scheduled for 
March/April 2013) 

• Inclusion of a report on the transfer of public health responsibilities, 
progress and associated timescales within the work schedule 

• The workshop/ seminar on Loneliness and Social Isolation being held 
in Sheffield on 15 November 2012 (details previous e-mailed to all 
members of the Scrutiny Board) 

Page 9



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 21st November, 2012 

 

• The Leeds Transformation Programme event being organised for 
Wednesday 7th November 2012 at 5.00pm. This would help prepare 
the Board for formal consideration of a series of reports regarding 
‘transformation’ at its November meeting 

• The possibility of convening an additional Board meeting in November 
2012 to consider the report to support the referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health regarding the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts’ 
decision following the review of Children’s Congenial Cardiac Services 

• A report to Executive Board likely to presented in the near future on the 
implications (and associated progress) relating to The Health and 
Social Care Act (2012). This was likely to include implications for 
scrutiny.  While any detailed regulations and guidance was still 
awaited, the Scrutiny Board agreed it was difficult to foresee how 
Council could discharge its powers relating to the scrutiny of health 
other than through the existing overview and scrutiny function/ 
arrangements 

•  The need to convene a meeting of the Health Service Development 
Working Group in the near future 

• Consideration be given to the potential input of Mr J Pritlove at the 
Mental Health working group meeting scheduled for December 2012. 
The specific purpose being to discuss issues around Out of Area 
Placements 

 
RESOLVED – 

a) That the contents of the report and appendices, alongside the issues 
discussed at the meeting, be noted. 

b) That the Executive Board minutes presented be noted. 
c) That, with the inclusion of the areas identified at the meeting, the work 

schedule as presented be approved. 
 

55 Date and Time of the Next Meeting  
Wednesday 21st November 2012 at 10.00am – Pre- meeting for all Board 
Members at 9.30am 
 
 
 
(The meeting concluded at 12.30pm) 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 November 2012 

Subject:  Transformation of Health and Social Care Services in Leeds   

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. In June 2012, the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 
agreed its inquiry report and recommendations associated with the Transformation of 
Health and Social Care Services  in Leeds.   

 
2. The purpose of this report is to present an update against a number of the Scrutiny 

Board’s previous recommendations.  A summary of the recommendations from that 
report is attached at Annex 1 for information.   

 
3. Updates covering the following areas are attached to this report: 
 

Governance arrangements for integrated working with Adult Social Care and Health 
(Recommendation 10) 

 
4. The report presented to Executive Board on 17 October 2012, is attached for 

consideration.   The minutes from that meeting are presented elsewhere on this 
agenda for consideration.  However, the Scrutiny Board is asked to note the following 
Executive Board resolutions in this regard: 

 

(a) That the approach to Section 75, Section 76 and Section 256 agreements 
for the governance and pooling of Health and Social Care resources be 
endorsed. 

 

(b) That the process for the Director of Adult Social Services to approve future 
agreements under the delegations afforded to her within the Council's 
Constitution, Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions), be noted. 

 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



 

 

(c) That it be noted that the agreements will be subject to formal review every 
3 years, but monitored annually during this time in order to assure their 
continuing relevance and effectiveness. 

 
Partnership arrangements between Adult Social Care and Leeds and York 
Partnership Foundation Trust (LYPFT) (Recommendation 9) 

 
5. The Director of Adult Social Services approved the Section 75 Agreement between 

LYPFT and Leeds City Council for the integration of council Mental Health 
Assessment and Care Management Teams with LYPFT Community Health Teams on 
28 September 2012.  The associated report is attached at Annex 3 or members 
consideration. 

 
Integrated health and social care teams (including lessons from demonstrator sites 
(Recommendation 8) and Risk stratification (Recommendation 7) 
 

6. An update report is attached at Annex 4. 
 

Progress report on developing Harry Booth House (Recommendation 11) 
 

7. An update report is attached at Annex 5. 
 
8. To assist the Scrutiny Board’s consideration of the various aspects presented in this 

report, appropriate officers from Adult Social Care and local NHS organisations have 
been invited to attend the meeting. 

 
Recommendations 

 
9. Members are asked to consider the information presented and determine any further 

action that may be required. 
 

Background documents 1   
 

Scrutiny Inquiry Report: The Transformation of Health and Social Care Services in 
Leeds (July 2012). 
 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not 
include published works. 

Page 12



ANNEX 1 
 

Scrutiny Inquiry Report: Transformation of Health and 

Social Care Services in Leeds (June 2012) 
 

Summary of recommendations 
 

 Recommendation 1  
 

During consideration of its work schedule for 2012/13, the successor 
Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) includes 

maintaining an overview of the Leeds Health and Social Care 
Transformation Programme and Programme Board within its work 

schedule. 

 

   

 Recommendation 2 
 

That, by August 2012, the Chair of Leeds Health and Social Care 

Transformation Board reviews the membership of the Board and considers 
expanding the membership to include a Third Sector Leeds representative.  

 

   

 Recommendation 3 
 

By August 2012, NHS Leeds provides a further report to the successor 
Scrutiny Board that clearly outlines the savings (in terms of  both ‘cash 

releasing’ and increased productivity) achieved through the work of the 
Transformation Board and the associated projects / supporting 

workstreams. 

 

   

 Recommendation  4  

 

Following the operation of the local 111 service for a period not exceeding 
18-months, that the Clinical Commissioning Groups review the provision 
of local urgent care services to ensure they continue to meet the needs of 

the people of Leeds. 

 

   

 Recommendation  5  
 

That the Chief Executive of NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds ensures 
that: 
 

(a) The Scrutiny Board comments aimed at improving access to Leeds 
Urgent Care Services are considered and taken forward appropriately. 

 

(b) Future public consultation exercises should, as a minimum gather 
partial postcode information to facilitate better interrogation and 

analysis of responses. 

 

   

 Recommendation  6  
 

That the Chief Executive of NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds ensures that 

Clinical Commissioning Groups are encouraged to agree and adopt 
consistent approaches to consultation, including the collection and 
analysis of postcode information.    

 

  
 

 

Page 13



   
  
 

 

 
Recommendation 7  
 

By December 2012, the Director of Adult Social Services, the Chief 

Executive of NHS Airedale, Bradford and Leeds and the three Clinical 
Commissioning Groups provide a joint report to the successor Scrutiny 
Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care), on the work around 

risk stratification and its impact on services across the local health and 
social care economy. 

 

   

 
Recommendation 8  
 

By August 2012, the Director of Adult Social Services and the Chief 
Executive of Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust provide the 
successor Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

with a progress report on the development of integrated health and social 
care teams – with a particular focus on the relative success of new ways 

of working trialled at each of the three demonstrator sites.  

 

   

 
Recommendation 9  
 

By September 2012, the Director of Adult Social Services and the Chief 
Executive of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust provide a 
joint progress report to the successor Scrutiny Board on the development 

of the formal partnership arrangements between Adult Social Services and 
Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, with a particular 

emphasis on the areas of potential risk, including  governance 
arrangements, finance, human resources and performance. 

 

   

 
Recommendation  10  
 

During the municipal year 2012/13, the Shadow Health and Wellbeing 

Board considers the governance arrangements associated with service 
integration, with the aim of developing some guiding principals and 
agreeing an overarching framework. 

 

   

 Recommendation  11  
 

By September 2012, the Director of Adult Social Services and the Chief 

Executive of Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust provide a joint report 
to the successor Scrutiny Board on the progress of the Harry Booth House 

project.  

 

   

 Recommendation  12  
 

That, following a suitable period of operation and in discussion with the 
successor Scrutiny Board,  the Director of Adult Social Services provides a 
further report on Harry Booth House that reviews its operation, 

achievements and outlines the benefits realised across the local health 
and social care economy.  

 

 

Page 14



�

�

�����������	��
��������������������������������

��������������������������


��������	��������������

��������������� !����� ����"�"����"��"�� ������#��$�" �#��	�%����	�

���������	����
�����
������		�������� ������ �����

�	���
��������������	���������
� �

�������������
��������	������
��������������������������������
������������

������ �����

�����������������
��� 
��	���!

"���� ������ �����

#�������������������������	������
�����$�������	��������� ������ �����

�	���
������������������	��������%���������&�
����� ����

�������$���� ����

��&&��!����&��"���������

'(� )�������������
��*������������� ��*�������������������������������������
���������������������� ��*�����+,�����������������������������	�������������
������-��
�����������������������*�

� ��������������������������������	�����(��)���
�������������������������������������������*��������������������.//0�+�
��������
�������

�����������12��10'����.20.�������������
��
�	
�$� ���������������*������������
������������������������������������������� �
����	������������	��� 
���	��������
�������������	�3�����������������(�

.(� )������������������������������������������

�,�������12��������������������

�3�����
������������������������� ��*����-�����!����!�����
����
��,���
�!�������+,�
-����������������������������
�(�

4(� )����������
��������������*����������������,�������12�����������*�

� ����������
������������������������������� �
���� ��*���������������	��+,�����	���
�����	���������������������-��
�������������������������������

�� ��*����-�����
!���������+�
�������-�����������5�%����������6���������)�����������
��
,���
�!��������������������(�

���������������������������������������� ����
'
�,10�

�*������
��
�����������������	�����������������!!7��������������������������������	��.20(�-�����
!����!�����
������������������ �����������
 
�������(�
.
�)�����������������������*�

�������������10����.20�

�&��������������#������+�
����

)�
���.818929�

Page 15



�

�

8(� )������������	��� ����
��
�����������	���3�����*��5����������������������	��������
������������������������������	��������*�����������������	�������������������	�����
-��
���������������5����		������������	��		��������
��
��������������(�����
���
��������*��������� �����������������������������	������������������� �� ����
��
����������
�������		�*��5�����������	�3�������������������(�

2(� )��� ����	����������������������������������������		������������������*��5����*����
��������	�����������		�����������		������������	����������������������������������
���
�������
������������	���������:�����	�-����(�

����&&�"�����"��

)�����������������,�������12��,10����,�������.20�����������	�����������������
������
�����	�+�
������,���
�!������������� ����������(�

)���������������	�������#���������	����
��,���
�,������������������	����������������
������������
��������		�������������*����������!�����
;��!�������������<		�����#�
�������
,�������=$��������6���������� �������(�

)�����������������*�

� ���� 3�������	���
������*�������������������������������
���

�����������������������������������������������
����������		����������� �������(�

�'� (����������)	����������

'('� )������������	���������������������5������������������	�=$��������>������������
�����������	�����
����������������������������������������*�����+,� ���������
-����(�

'(.� &�����������������������
�����������������������������!�����������
�$�����������:������������
�$���(��)����+,�?6��
�@��	����������������
�		������
����
���������������

���*���������!��������������	���������������������
������!
����
�!�������������7�������������� 
��	��������		��������
���������
���������	���
��������������(��<�����������������+,�������������*������
�������

������������*�����������
������������	���������������
���A�-��������
���5�%����������6���������)������-�����!���������+�
���������-�����
)�������+�����
�)����(�

'(4� )��������������	�������� ����	�����
��� ��*��������*����������+,����
��
�
��������������������������*����������������������������*��������������
�����������
�������
��*������
����������
����������(������������������������������
��������������������	������������������	�3���������������������������������	�����
�
�������������
����5�����������	������������������		������	�����+,�
�������������������
��
������������������
�������������	�����������*��������
������������*�

� ����������������	��������������

�3���������������������3����
��
�����������������4(�

�

���������������������������������������� ����
4
�)������������ ����	�3�����������������������������*���������
��
�����������������%!)�*��5�3����
��
�����*���*�����������	������������	���*��5����������� ���������������������� �������12�
��������(�

Page 16



�

�

�'� ���$ ���"��*"���&����"�

.('� ,.20��	����������
�+�
���,�����������.//0���+,��.//0�����������%!)����
����	����������
��
����������������	��������������������*����������������*��	�����
�+,��	������������������������ 3������������������� ���������������		���������
���
���������������������

"��
��(�)���
��
����������*�

�����������������������
����
������������*��*�������
���������������� 3������(�)���������������	����	����������
	��������(�

.(.� ,10������������������	�,.20��������������������
��
�������������������	����������
�����������������%!)�����!!7����	�'�����
�./'4����*�����$������������������ ��
�����+,�������
�����������������������	��������(����������������������	����	�
���������	��������(�

.(4� +�*��������
�5���,.20����,10��������������12����������

�*�������	�����
�������������
�������������������������������������(����-���������%!)��	����$��
���
�����
����������������������������,!�	�������������������������������	�
����������������
��*�����
����������� �
����*���������������	��������5���
*�����*��
�� ��	������ �������+,������������������������
�������
����
����(�)���

��
�������������������������������������������������
����������
����
5��*
���������$�����������������	����������������*���������� ���� ������������
������		������
�(�)�����
��������	��+,����������	����������������!�����
�

�*������
�������������������� ��������������������������������������		������
�������������
����
��������
�����	��������������(�

.(8� ,�������12��	������+,��.//0����������������
��� �����������
�����
����-��
�
�������������������������
�����������������������������������������
����������(��)�������*��������������������������������������*��5�����������
�����
���������������������������������3�����������	��$�����������������������
����
��������	���*�����������(�

.(2� )������������������ �����
��� �����������������	����������������������	�
����������
����������������� �������������������� ��
	��	���������������������
������������������(��)��������������� ������������������*�������*�����
���������������������������(�(�-�������#�� �
����������������B�����=���������
������������*��5����������������������������������	����$��
��C���
�+�
���
������������������������������������������������������� �����������	����+����
>�����+����(��

.(0� ���-�����*���������� ����	�����������������������
���������
��� ��*����
+�
������,���
�!������������������)���	��������%��������*������ ����

��5��������*�������������	���������������������	���3�����*��5����������	��*��(�����
����
��
��� ��������������������
��������	�	���������������������*�

� ���5���
�������� �
�����	�����+�
��������

 �����>�����������	�����(�

.(1� �����������*������������� ����	����������������������
�������������
3����
�����������������������(��C������	��*���*���������������������
�������
��*�����������*���������������
��
�	���*��5������������ ��������������
���������(�

�

Page 17



�

�

+'� ,��"�*������

4('� -��������������
�������������	�������;+�
�������6
�$� �
�����;�������
�����-�������
#�� �
�������������*������3�����������������������������������������������
������� ���������
��� ��*���������+,����-��
�����������	�����������'.�����(�
+�*�����������������������������
��������������������
�
�������	����+,�
������������������������	����
���������	�����
��
�������		��������������������
��������������������������������*�

������������*������
�5�
������������������
	�����(�

4(.� )����������������������������� ���	����	���������������������*��	���������
��������������������������
���
����������������������������
��������
�����
����������	������������������(��)�����������	�������

�,12������������� ��
������� ����������������	���3������������������	�������������������������������
*��������	���
���������� ���� ��
����	����*������������
��������������
��
����������������������$���	�������������������
������(�

4(4� )�������������*�������������	����������3���������������������������������������
����
��������������������	����
���	������������������� ������	���� �����
��
,���
�!����		������*��5����*����
��
���������������"���������*��������������
���������!
����
�!�������������7������*���*�

� ���������"������������������
���������(�

4(8� )�������

������������������������������,�������12��	����������
�+�
���
,�����������.//0����������������������������������
��������� 
��������
���
������������A���� 
���������������������������
��� �������*����������
��������A���� 
�������������������������������
��������������
����������
��������!�����
��������������*�������������
��� 
����������������	����������
	���������*��
����������������������
�������	���
����������������+,�	���������
������	�����������������	���
�����A�����������
�������������	���	�����
�
������ �������	���� �����������������������������	�����������������	�����
	���A��������������������������	������������������	����������������
���������������������������	����������������������(���

4(2� �������������

�,12�����������������5��������	�����

�����������������5�
�������������������

����������������������������	����������������
�������	���
�������������
����������������������������	����$��
�������������
�������	������
����-�������#�� �
�����������������	������������������������������(�

4(0� =�����������������
������������	�������������������������������(��)����*�

�
��������������������	�������������������
������������������ 3��������������	���
��������������������������������������
�������������	���	�������	���
����������� ����������	��������������������
���	�	�����
������� ��������*�����
*�

����
����������
��� ����������������������		��������������������*��������
����������������������������(��%��	���������������������������*�

�

��� �����
�����*���������������	���������
�����*�

�	����������	���		�������������
������
�������	���������������(�

4(1� ,�������12����������� ��*��������-��
��������������������
���������������	�
����������������������������������+,��������������*�

������������������
������
����*��������������������	�����	�������������������������5��������������

Page 18



�

�

������
���������������������������������������������������
������
����������A����������������������A�	�����
�������������������������
*��
���������������%��
���6��������������� ����������������������������
��������������$�����������������	�����
��		��������������
���������������	�����
%����������>���A���		������
���	���������		�������������������������A�
���������������
��������������(�

4(D� )��������������*����������������������	� ������������������������������
���������*�

�����������������
������������
�����������,�������.20��	�����.//0�
+�
������(��)�����������������������������*������+,���������������*�

�*����
����
��
������������������������������������������ ��
	��������������������������
����
���	���������������*�

�����
������	��������
����	�������������������
�����������	�������
��
����������������������(��)����������������*�

����������
*����������������������	����������
������������(�)������������	����������
���������������
�������������������	�����	����	�������A���������������������
�
������

� �������	������������	�����������A����������������	�����������������
��������������������A����������������������������������������������������
�����������	���������(�

4(9� )������ 
���������	�����������*��������+�
��������������������������
�
+�
���,�����������.//0������������������������	���*��5�	���	������*��5���� ��
���������������������������������������������������������� �
�����������
���������
�������
��	����%!)����!
����
�!�������������7�������!!7���������
����./'.�+�
������,���
�!������(��E����������
����
������+,���������������
�������� �
������*�

� ����������� �������+,�!�������������>������+,!>�(��
,��������������������������� ������������������*�

� ����
�������������
!!7�� ������>���(�����5������
����������*���������+,!>�*�

� ������
�����
������������+�
��������

 �����>���(���

-'� .���������.�"���������"��

-'�� .�"��������"��"���" � �&�"���

8('('(� )���*��5��	�������������������� ����
��� �����
��,���
�!����������������
���������!
����
�!�������������7�������!!7�������������������������
��������������� ����	�

�*������
�����������
����������������������*��������
=$��������C�� ���	������
��,���
�!����%����������>������������
��������������
-�������#�� �
����!�������������=$���������������!
����
�!�������������
7�����!�

 ������(��)����������������
�� ������	����	�����
����������������
��������������������������������������(��

-'�� �/�����!��"��
�������!�0�.�	����"��"��*"�� �����"�

8(.('(� ���=��
������������������������������*�

� ����������������������������
�
����������������������������������������������������
(���6�

�*��������
������������	�

�����������*�

� �����������������������(�

-'+� .��"����(���������"��.��!�(����������

8(4('(� )��������������	�������������������
����*������������!����!�����
�������
��,���
�!���
�������������������+,���������	���%�������������!����(��)���F������	���-�����

Page 19



�

�

./''"./4/�����������;-�����*�

� ������ ���������	���+�
��������

 ������-�����
*�

� �����
������������������	���

�����*���������
��������������� �������
��
����������������
����	�

�����������������������
����;(��<�������������	���
���
��
	���
��������������������������������*�

�����������������������
�������������������������������������	��������������*�

������������������
������
������(�

8(4(.(� )�������������������� �������������
����������'8.�����������������	���
��� 
��
����
����������������������������������
�����(�

8(4(4(� )���������� ������������!����%��������%
��./'2� �����������������
�����
�����	�
�����
�������*��������������������������������������	�������������	���������������
������
������
����������
����������
�������������(�

8(4(8(� )���������� ������������!�����
�>��������%
��./''"./'2�����
��,���
�!���
#����������%�������������%��	�������C������� ��������������������
��*����
�������
���������
�������������
�����(�

8(4(2(� )�������������������������
���*�������������������5���������
��� 
�����
����
�	�����������������
����(�

8(4(0(� )����	�������������������������������3�����������
����������
��������������
������������ ��F
�����%���
���������
������������������ �����
���
������������
���,�
	�#��������,������(�

-'-� �����������"��1���������,�"�!��

8(8('(� )����$���������	�3����������������������3����������������	���������� ��*��������
-��
���������������+,���������������������������	����������������������
�����
������		�����������		��������� 
�������������������!�������*�����������������

�$���:���	���-���������:���� �� �����������	�����;-������;(��+�*������

�

�������������������� �����������������������������������������������������
������ ����������������������������� ���	��������		������������������� ��������
�*����������(�

8(8(.(� ����$��
���	������*��5�������������������������
��� ������	�������
��*����-�������
#�� �
����*�������������� ������-��
�������������� ��
	��	�

���������������

�������
�������04C���������	�����
����(��<������������.����������������4C�

�	��		�������������� �������� ��������		�����������������������������
���������������������� 
��� ��������-��
��������������������+�
���
������������������������������������	������������*�������������$�������
��������������������������
���������
�����������	����������������������	���
����
������������� �����(�

8(8(4(� )���������������� ������F��*�+�����
�,�������!���&����*������	����
��
����
����������������	����������� 
��������������������5����������������������
������������������������	������������������������� �
�������������������
��
*�������������������5�������������

����
��� 
�(�������� ���������������
��
���������������������������������������
����������������
�����������

Page 20



�

�

�������
���	���������������		������������������������������������
��*�����
�������	���������������������
(�

-'2� 3� ���*&��������"�4����������*"���&����"��"��.����*"�

8(2('(� )�����������	���	����
��������������������,12�!�����������G�%��������H�,.20��
��� ����������5���*��������
�����������������������������	��������!�����
�
���������
��
������������������������+,�
*������

����������������	�

�
����
�����*����������������������	�����+�
�������.//0(�

8(2(.(� �

���������������� 3������������
� ������#���������	����
��,���
�,���������
-�����!����!�����
��������������*�����	�#�
������#���������5����	����
���������������
������*��������=$��������-���C�� ��(��)���	�������������	�
����������*�

� ����������

�,12�!�����������������������*�����*�

�����
���������������
����������������������������������-�������#�� �
����3�����
�����������������������-�����=���������,�����������������������������������
����3�����������������	�����,�����-�����������������!���!�������	�����
��+����
>�����+�����(���������������������������,12�����������	������������������	��������
��
������������	������+����>�����+������������3����������������	��������	�
����
���
������������*�

�
��� ���������� �����������(����,.20����������*�

�


��� ����������� 
���48/I���� ������	�������������-��
�����������	�������

��������������	��������������������������� ��
	��	������+,(�

8(2(4(� �������������������

�����������������������������*�������
���	�����������

�
���������������������������������������*����������� ��*�������������
	���������*�

� ������ ���������������
������� ���(��+�*������ ����������
��
������������	�����������*�

��������������	������������������ ���� 3�������
�

"��(��)�����������������
���������8(2(.�� ����������	��������
���*�

� ���� 3����
����

"��(��

8(2(8(� �������������������%������������������������������;��������������	���
#���������"�%�����������7��������;����
����������	���������������������
�������������������*�����(�

8(2(2(� ����������	��
��������� ����������������������������)���#���������	����
��,���
�
,���������������=$��������-���C�� ���*�

���������������������������
��
������ 
��	��� ���������������������������������	������������������������������	�
����!�����
������������������� �����������������������������������(��+�*������
C�� ����*�

� ��*����	������������
�	��������	����
��������$��������������������	�
!�����
�����+,������������5������������	�

���������*��
����������	������������������
�����$�����������5��������������������������(�

8(2(0(� !�

���������������
��������������	����������������������	������������,�������
12��������������������������������������������������(��

-'5� ���$�,�"� �&�"��

8(0('(� ����������������,12G.20������������������������	���������	����������������
�������������5�� ��*����+�
������-��
����������� �����(��>�������������
��������������
����*������� ��*��������������������������������������������

Page 21



�

�

����5�����$�
���������
��

�� ���������������� ��*������������*������*�

�
�����������������	�������
�(�

8(0(.(� �����������������������������������
�����*����5����� ���	���������� ��������
 ��*�������������������������*����������������������� �����������(��)���
�������������5����
���������������
�������������
����5�
��������
��
������	�
��������	�����
(�C�� ������� �� ��������������������������	���������������
�������� �����������4� �����������������
�������	�������!�����
(���

8(0(4(� <����������������������������������3����
��������� �������	�������������������
�����	������������
�����5����������

���$������������	����������������������������
������������������� 
��	�����
��������������
��$������(���

2'� .�"������"��

2('� )�������������������������������������,�������12�����,�������.20�����������*�

�
 ����������������������������������������� �
���� ��*������������������
��������������	��+,��������������-��
����������������������(��)������������	�
�� ����
��
�����������	���3�����*��5������������������������������������	�����
���������������������������������	������������5����		������������	��		�����
���
��
��������������(�����
�����������*��������� ������������������
�����������	������������������� �� ������
����������
�������		�*��5������
�����	�3�����������������������	�����

���		��������		������������������	���
�������������������������������	�������
�(���

5'� ����&&�"�����"��

0('� )�����������������,�������12��,10�����,�������.20�����������	�������
����������������
�����	�+�
������,���
�!������������� �����������

0(.� )���������������	�������#���������	����
��,���
�,������������������	������
����������������������
��������		�������������*����������!�����
;��!�������������
<		�����#�
�������,�������=$��������6���������� �������(�

0(4� )�����������������*�

���� ���� 3�������	���
������*�������4������ �������������
���

�����������������������������������������������
����������		����������� ��
�����(�

�'� ���$ ���"��
���&�"��-��

�����

���������������������������������������� ����
8
�)��� �5�����������������
���������������������������
 
�������*�
���	��������!�����
@��*� ������
��
�������������������	������
�����$�������	�������(��)���
�����	� �5�����������������������������
����
�� 
������*��5�(�

Page 22



 

 

Chief Officer, Learning Disabilities 

Report to Director Adult Social Care for Delegated Decision 

Date: September 2012 

Subject: Section 75 Agreement for Integrated Mental Health Teams under the 
National Health Service Act 2006 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This report brings forward our intention to have a formal Section 75 Agreement, 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report, in place between Leeds City Council  and Leeds 
and York Partnership Foundation Trust (LYPFT)  with regards to the integration of 
Adult Social Care's Health Assessment and Care Management Teams with LYPFT 
Community Health Teams. 

2. The adoption of robust legal agreements for  joint working ensures a consistency of 
approach and makes efficient use of officer time from both organisations. It also 
ensures that we have a co-ordinated approach to the governance of integrated teams 
overseen by a Partnership Board  

3. The agreement follows a clear rationale thereby promoting effective partnership 
working with the aim of effective and optimum use of resources. This will allow both 
Health and Social Care to meet the assessed health and social care needs of the 
citizens of Leeds who are eligible to access secondary mental health provision. 

Recommendations 

4. The Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) is asked to approve the Section 75 
agreement between Leeds City Council and LYPFT for the integration of council Mental 
Health Assessment and Care Management Teams with LYPFT Community Health 
Teams. 

 Report author: Maxine Naismith 

Tel:  50449 

ANNEX 3 

Page 23



 

 

1 Purpose of This Report 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to recommend that the DASS approves the 
partnership arrangements between Adult Social Care and LYPFT under the 
auspices of Section 75, National Health Service Act 2006.  

2 Background Information 

2.1 Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 provides that health bodies 
and Local Authority services can pool money and integrate resources and 
management structures. These powers are intended to support partnership 
working and result in service improvements through the joining up of existing  
services or the development of new initiatives. 

2.2 These agreements can be either pooled budget arrangements commissioner led  
services or integrated provider agreements. This agreement is in relation to 
integrated provider arrangements. 

2.3 In Leeds we have enjoyed an informal partnership arrangement with the provider 
trust and teams have been co-located in Health bases for a number of years. The 
implementation of the Section 75 agreement enables us to have a more 
streamlined approach to meeting the needs of people who are mentally ill on a 
formal, performance managed basis with a number of key drivers. Significantly for 
Adult Social Care these will be focussed around an increase in Self Directed 
Support (SDS) uptake and more robust and enhanced safeguarding of vulnerable 
adults. 

3 Main Issues 

3.1 This agreement will have the benefit of both organisations being at the forefront of 
implementing national policy and local guidelines by having a shared strategic  
and operational vision.  

3.2 This document has been drafted by Adult Social Care and LYPFT working in co-
operation. Both organisations will be counter signatories to the agreement. 

3.3 The establishment of a Section 75 agreement with LYPFT provides a good 
practice framework for future working by ensuring a consistent approach across 
the city and providing stability for this particular service user group at a time of 
Health and Social Care reform. 

3.4 This agreement will serve to improve services, maximise efficiencies and deliver 
more effective and efficient services in order to meet assessed need. The aim of 
the agreement is to enable both partners to integrate services including staff, 
resources and management structures to design and deliver products around the 
needs of clients and carers.  This agreement will provide arrangements to 
eliminate unnecessary gaps and duplications between services thus providing 
more positive outcomes for clients, carers and the workforce. 

3.5 The Section 75 agreement clarifies the role and responsibilities of the Director of 
Adult Social Services and describes in detail the statutory function of Social 

Page 24



 

 

Workers and more specifically illustrates the role and function of the Approved 
Mental Health Professional Service. In addition the agreement clearly describes 
the core business functions of Health and Social Care within secondary mental 
health provision. 

3.6 The governance of the agreement will be overseen by a Partnership Board, co-
chaired by the Chief Officer for the Adult Social Care Directorate and the Deputy 
Chief Executive for the Trust. The board responsibilities are comprehensively set 
out in the agreement and its business will centre around performance data, 
financial allocation including pressures and efficiencies. In addition the board will 
have a clear overview of the risks and benefits on a quarterly basis in relation to 
both organisations within this agreement. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.0.1 We have assessed the Partnership agreements against the ‘Advisory note for 
Directors – Partnerships Governance’ tool and can confirm that it meets the 
requirements stated within. 

4.0.2 In terms of Elected Members governance and scrutiny, the same procedures will 
be in force under the Section 75 agreement as apply now. The Director of Adult 
Social Services will continue to remain statutorily responsible for the Assessment 
and Care Management Mental Health function and therefore it sits within the 
constitution of the Council as it stands. Following the first year of the agreement 
should changes be made to the delegation of responsibility, the DASS and the 
Council still remain accountable for the social care element of the Mental Health 
service as outlined in the partnership agreement. 

4.0.3 Colleagues in Internal Audit have confirmed that they are satisfied that the 
Section 75 agreement meets their requirements around governance. 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The work of this agreement has been led jointly by Adult Social Care and LYPFT, 
rigorous reporting procedures have been followed including consultation and 
communication with the Executive Member for Adult Social Care, Transformation 
Board, Transformation Project Board, user representative on the Transformation 
Board, extensive utilisation of the Trust’s Transformation Newsletter, Local 
Authority Trade Unions, NHS Leeds and quarterly Adult Social Care staff 
sessions.  

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out prior to a report to Executive 
Board in December 2011. For good practice another Screening Assessment has 
been recently carried out to confirm that there is not any deviation from the work 
carried out in 2011.  This is attached as Appendix 2 to this report.   

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The direction of integration  is in line with current City Council and Adult Social 
Care priorities and the NHS drivers for Partnership and Change. The Vision for 

Page 25



 

 

Leeds 2011-2030 states that ‘Leeds will be the best city for Health and Wellbeing, 
Leeds will be a healthy and caring city for all ages where people are supported by 
high quality services to live full, active and independent lives’. On a more specific 
level a formal approach to partnership agreements will strengthen partnership 
arrangements, increase the optimum use of resources and will support increased 
personalisation. 

4.3.2 This initiative contributes to National Indicator 142, the percentage of vulnerable 
people supported to achieve independent living. 

4.3.3 This contributes to the City Priority Plan 2015 by supporting people to live safely 
in their own homes and increases the opportunities for more significant choice 
and control in relation to health and social care services. 

4.3.4 This contributes to the Council Business Plan 2011-2015, Adult Social Care 
Directorate Priorities and Performance Measures by ensuring more people with 
poor health remain living at home longer. 

4.3.5 This initiative supports adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable to live 
safe and independent lives. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.6 No significant financial risks are forecast, in the first year of this agreement there 
will be no pooling of budgets therefore the Community Care Budget responsibility 
will be retained by Adult Social Care. The Section 75 agreement has the flexibility 
to look at and analyse benefits for further alignment of budgets overseen by the 
Partnership Board. A focus of the integration is to achieve greater efficiencies and 
whilst none are forecast for Adult Social Care in the first year of the agreement 
this will be a priority for years 2 and 3. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The process of formulating this agreement has been undertaken with detailed 
advice and support from the Council in house legal services team and 
Beachcrofts (LYPFT lawyers)  to ensure full compliance with Section 75 
procedures. 

4.5.2 The agreement is subject to approval and signoff by the Director of Adult Social 
Services, Leeds City Council  under her powers of Delegated Decision making. 

4.5.3 This Section 75 agreement is reported as a significant operational decision and 
therefore not subject to call-in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The risks of not implementing a formal Section 75 agreement are as follows; 

• The process of obtaining increased efficiencies across the Health and 
Social Care Pathways will be affected. 

Page 26



 

 

• There will be an increased risk of continued, informal co-location 
arrangements remaining in place by not having a formal, consistent 
approach to the integration of teams which may result in tensions across 
both organisations without a clear strategic direction. 

4.6.2 Failure to implement a formal, legal partnership agreement will have a detrimental 
impact upon the plans to further develop and integrate Health and Social Care 
Services in Leeds. 

4.6.3 As the agreement does not have a stated 'duration' i.e. end date contained within, 
advice has been sought from legal services as to whether this is acceptable with a 
Section 75 agreement. 

 Their advice is that the termination clause at paragraph 17 of the agreement 
allows for the termination on a number of grounds - default by one party, 
convenience, force majeure, ultra vires, budgetary reasons and therefore it is 
robust enough to effectively end the agreement with appropriate notice. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The partnership between the Council and LYPFT is positive and has been 
successful in delivering some positive outcomes for clients and carers to date.  
This agreement envisages the possibility of a delegation of statutory functions 
being transferred in coming years and therefore it is appropriate to use this 
format.  To implement a formal arrangement would strengthen this relationship 
further and would have the benefit of planning and supporting the future direction 
of travel and would put Leeds at the forefront of challenging initiatives. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 The Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) is asked to approve the Section 75 
agreement between Leeds City Council and LYPFT for the integration of council 
Mental Health Assessment and Care Management Teams with LYPFT 
Community Health Teams. 

7 Background documents1  

None 

 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

1

 
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and 
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration. 
 
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the 
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines 
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. 
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine: 

• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has 
already been considered, and 

• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment. 
 

Directorate: Adult Social Care Service area: Mental Health 
 

Lead person: Max Naismith 
 

Contact number: 

 

1. Title: Agreement between Leeds and York  Partnership Foundation Trust and 
Leeds City Council Adult Social Care under Section 75 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006, for the integrated provision of adult mental health services 
 

Is this a: 
 
     Strategy / Policy                    Service / Function                 Other 
                                                                                                                
 
 
If other, please specify:  Agreement under Section 75 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006, for the integrated provision of adult health and social 
services 
 

 

2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening 
 

 
The Agreement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006, for the 
integrated provision of adult mental health services is the product of ongoing service 
improvement work between Leeds Partnership foundation trust and Leeds Adult 
social care.  This agreement provides a formal structure for further development of 
this work, outlining the governance of the agreement and establishing an partnership 
board.  
 
This agreement specifically relates to the powers given enabling one organisation to 
lead and host the commissioning of another partner and to integrate provision.  
 

 
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and 
Integration Screening 

  x 

Page 107



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

2

 
 

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or 
the wider community – city wide or more local.  These will also have a greater/lesser 
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.   
 
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are. 
 
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender 
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and any other relevant 
characteristics (for example socio-economic status, social class, income, unemployment, 
residential location or family background and education or skills levels). 
 

Questions Yes No 

Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different 
equality characteristics?  

 x 

Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the 
policy or proposal? 

 x 

Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by 
whom? 

x  

Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment 
practices? 

x  

Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on 

• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and 
harassment 

• Advancing equality of opportunity 

• Fostering good relations 

x  

 
If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7 
 
If you have answered yes to any of the above and; 

• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, 
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4. 

• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration within your proposal please go to section 5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

3

 
 

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration 
 

If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality, 
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.  
 
Please provide specific details  for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance). 

• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration? 
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related 
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement 
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected) 
 
Leeds City council specialist adult mental health services have been co-located with 
Leeds partnership foundation trust1 staff for some years under informal arrangements.  In 
2010 a project was initiated to develop this partnership.  An equality impact assessment 
was undertaken lead by the Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust and Adult Social 
Care Mental Health Partnership Project at this time.  This equality impact assessment 
supported the need to formalise these arrangements to ensure that work could progress. 
 
The consultation and engagement work undertaken to develop that partnership was 
outlined in the actions of that EIA.  
 
It also identified key areas of mental health need such as  

• the under representation of males in access to Occupational therapists and 
consultant psychotherapists  

• The peaks in care spells by age by gender.  These show an initial peak at 31-40 
years and a further peak at 71-80 years for males and 81-90 years for females.   

• The ethnicity profile indicates that BME groups are over represented in inpatient 
care.   

• Mapping of care spells per 1000 population by electoral wards indicated that care 
spells per population does not necessarily correlate with those expected by 
socioeconomic predictions. 

 
These are all areas which require further exploration and where appropriate systematic 
change to address.  One aim of the Transformation programme within LYPFT is to 
eliminate variation by developing ageless care pathways for both inpatients and 
community based care, another is to ensure that the correct skills mix to deliver equitable 
service is available in all teams.  The implementation of the partnership agreement will 
give a formal basis on which to develop systems. The governance resulting from the 
partnership board to be established under this agreement requires formalisation of 
process and scrutiny around data.   Better quality data will facilitate more rapid 
identification of areas where services are not being offered in an equitable manner. 
 
The Section 75 agreement puts in place the framework for the establishment of a matrix 
management agreement for Adult social care staff.  This will enable streamlining of task 
allocation whilst enhancing the clarity around professional accountability.  A key driver in 

                                            
1
 In March 2012 Leeds Partnership foundation trust merged with the York foundation trust becoming 
LYPFT  

Page 109



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

4

the development of a Matrix management structure has been consultation with staff and 
unions and has been identified as a more effective means of ensuring cohesion and 
integration that alternatives such as secondment.    
 
 
 

• Key findings 
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality 
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups, 
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception 
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another) 
 
• A formal Section 75 agreement is required to underpin the existing levels of informal 

collocation and to provide the ability to further develop services jointly to ensure that both 
organisations can respond jointly to changing Health and Social Care policy .   

• The Mental Health Services are currently collocated without any formal agreement which 
contributes to the risk of additional duplication of effort and with less opportunity to 
maximise efficiencies across both organisations. 

• To minimise the risk to the council regarding future financial commitment appropriate 
clauses have been incorporated to allow for potential changes in future financial years. 
The Community Care budget will be a standing agenda item at the Partnership Board 
which will allow both organisations to take a view on the overall financial position and 
allow for any future efficiency savings.  

 
This screen indicates that there are greater equality risks associated with continuing to deliver 
these services on an informal partnership arrangement at a time of significant operational change 
within the NHS and Adult Social Care.    
 
 
 
 

• Actions 
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact) 
 
The governance of the agreement is critical to ensure that positive impacts are promoted and 
negative impacts are removed or reduced.  A Partnership Board is being established on a jointly 
chaired basis by the Deputy Chief Executive of LYPFT and the Chief Officer responsible for 
Mental Health Services in ASC. This board will have the following responsibilities:  
 

• To receive and request relevant information with regards to reports on the service and 
progress. 

• To monitor and agree resource allocation taking into consideration cost pressures  

• Approve changes to the provision of the services 

• Consider the risks and benefits of a transition to a fully integrated model of service 
delivery.  (Any further integration would align with complete financial years and would 
require the agreement of both LYPFT and the council.  A variation notice would be agreed 
prior to implementation.)  

• Oversee the  performance and quality of service provision against standards 

• The board will meet quarterly or by exception, decisions will be by consensus 
 
The implementation of this board therefore enhances the formal scrutiny of all aspects of services 
delivery including equality characteristics, and is key to ensuring continued improvement in the 

Page 110



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

5

equity of provision.   
 

Ensuring that consideration of eligibility for social care support is embedded throughout 
the pathway and minimising duplication of assessment whilst fulfilling both organisations 
statutory responsibilities is essential to the ongoing success of the partnership.  Under 
the Transformation agenda, staff will be supported to work in a holistic way considering 
the individual’s health and social care needs in terms of recovery, social inclusion and 
personalisation.   This closer working will enable barriers to access to be minimised.  
 
The service needs to consider that not all social care work presents through secondary 
mental health services and those presenting through area offices need an equally prompt 
and smooth service.  Under the Transformation programme within LYPFT a single point 
of access to secondary mental health services has been developed.  Adult social care 
and Leeds community health are currently exploring a Gateway service providing a single 
point of access to community health and social care services.  The formalisation of 
agreement in place under this agreement enhances the relationship between all 
organisations, it is important to ensuring improved access to care that interfaces between 
these are not overlooked.  
 
Consultation has identified that there is the potential for negative impact if a joint 
information and communication strategy across LPFT and ASC is not implemented.  This 
strategy must ensure that all groups are kept informed of changes. 
 
LPFT and ASC have two separate electronic patient data recording systems; it is 
proposed that an integrated information governance structure will be implemented to 
ensure information is cross referenced on both systems.  The introduction for this will be 
within the parameters of the project as a whole.  
 

 

 

5.  If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment. 
 

Date to scope and plan your impact assessment: 
 

 

Date to complete your impact assessment 
 

 

Lead person for your impact assessment 
(Include name and job title) 

 

 
 

6. Governance, ownership and approval 
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 

Name Job title Date 

 
 

  

 
 

7. Publishing 
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to equality and diversity 

Page 111



EDCI Screening  Updated February 2011 
   

   

6

has been given. If you are not carrying out an independent impact assessment the 
screening document will need to be published. 
 
Please send a copy to the Equality Team for publishing 
 

Date screening completed  
 

Date sent to Equality Team 
 

 

Date published 
(To be completed by the Equality Team) 

 

 

Page 112



 - 1 - 

Equality Impact Assessment – Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust and 
Adult Social Care Mental Health Partnership Project 
 
1. Introduction 
This paper outlines the actions undertaken to identify and assess the potential 
impact of the proposed changes to partnership arrangements between Leeds 
Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust (LPFT) and the specialist mental health 
assessment and care management function in Leeds City Council Adult Social Care 
(ASC).  The lead people for this equality impact assessment were John Lennon for 
Leeds City Council and Michele Moran for LPFT.  Members of the assessment team 
were: Caroline Bamford, Richard Graham, James Hoult, Kim Adams, Iola Shaw and 
Julie Bootle.  
 
The process included engagement with a range of stakeholders - service users, 
carers, health and social care staff, council members, voluntary sector organisations, 
health partners. This information has then informed the mitigating actions included in 
this assessment. 
 
2. Overview 
 
This is a joint Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration Impact Assessment 
between Leeds City Council and Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
All local authorities and NHS Trusts need to ensure that all their strategies, policies, 
service and functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to 
equality, diversity, cohesion and integration. In all appropriate instances we will need 
to carry out an equality, diversity, cohesion and integration impact assessment. 
 
The scope of this project is to develop joint adult mental health services for the 

population of the City of Leeds, through the provision of services which are service 

user focused and exemplary in their delivery.  

 

In determining the future model of partnership working there are elements that must 

be included for the partnership to be a success: 

 

••••   Clean and clear lines of responsibility for statutory functions including 

monitoring arrangements and accountability. 

••••    A single management team hosted by one organisation to avoid 

duplication. 

••••    Streamlined processes and clear pathways. 

 
The project is being linked to wider work that LPFT is undertaking to redesign 
services around pathways that allow service users to access the support they need 
quickly without need for repeated assessments.  Combining both pieces of work 
means that the new pathways can be developed holistically with consideration given 
to individuals’ health and social care needs. 
 
 

Page 113



 - 2 - 

3. Scope 
This assessment seeks to analyse the impact of the proposed changes on any 
specific group. The assessment utilises factual data collected by the Leeds City 
Council Adult Social Care, NHS Leeds, Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust 
(specialist mental health trust) and voluntary sector organisations. 
 
The assessment also takes into account comments, opinions and views from a 
range of stakeholders including service users, staff and management. This 
information has been analysed by the assessment team to provide an evidence 
based assessment of potential impacts and identifies actions that may be taken to 
mitigate these impact should the decision be made to integrate provision. 
 
4. Fact Finding – What do we already know? 
 
4.1 Demographics 
4.1.1 Leeds.  Leeds is the second largest metropolitan district in England with an 
estimated population in excess of 750,000 people. Whilst the Leeds economy as a 
whole, has been a success story, Leeds has a significant amount of deprivation. Five 
wards in the city have more than half their super output areas (subdivisions of wards) 
in the 10 per cent most deprived in England. These five wards tend to have the 
highest levels of deprivation, proportion of people on unemployment benefits and 
proportion of households in receipt of council benefits. 
 
Like many other cities in the UK, Leeds is now facing unprecedented change and 
uncertainty. The University of Leeds predicts that by 2026 the total number of people 
living in the Leeds local authority area will be 830,000. This will include larger 
numbers of people from ethnic minorities and higher numbers of younger people as 
well as an increase in people aged 75 and over. In general people are living longer 
and there are as many people over 60 as under 16. Although the rate of increase in 
the proportion of older citizens in Leeds is not likely to be as great as in some 
neighbouring authorities, it is predicted that the number of people in Leeds aged 65 
and over will rise by almost 40 per cent to 153,600 in 2031, around 20 per cent of the 
population.  
 
In particular: 
 

• Leeds has a significantly higher proportion of 15 to 29 year olds (26 per cent 
compared to the national average approaching 20 per cent); 

 

• there is a significant student population of over 60,000 studying in the two 
universities in the city;  

 

• Stonewall estimates that a large city such as Leeds with an established gay 
scene may be made up of at least 10% lesbian, gay and bisexual people; 

 

• Leeds population broken down by religion or belief is 69.9% Christians, 3% 
Muslims, 1.1% Sikh. 1.2% Jewish, 0.6% Hindu, 0.2% Buddhist and 24.9% no 
religion or not stated; 

 

• Leeds is now home to over 130 different nationalities; 

Page 114



 - 3 - 

 

• in 2006 the Office for National Statistics (ONS) estimated that 15.1% of the total 
resident population comprised people from black and minority ethnic communities 
(including Irish and other white populations), a rise of 5 per cent from the 2001 
census; and 

 

• by 2030 the black and minority ethnic population in Leeds is estimated to 
increase by 55 per cent.  

 
4.1.2. Mental Health Needs.  Mental health problems are common. Around one in 
six adults suffer from a common mental health problem such as anxiety or 
depression. Nationally 29% of women and 17% of men will suffer some form of 
mental health problem during their lives; 1 in 4 women and 1 in 10 men will 
experience an episode of a depressive illness; self harm prevalence stands at 400 
per 100,000 population. One in ten mothers suffer from post natal depression. 
Mental ill health occupies approximately one third of GP time. Ninety per cent of 
people with common mental health problems are managed entirely within primary 
care.   
 
Incidence of mental health problems is more prevalent in the Lesbian, Gay and 
Bisexual communities. In 2006 research was undertaken with this community within 
Leeds (Noret, Rivers and Richards, 2006) and found that: over one third of LGB 
people encountered mental health challenges, with more than half reporting having 
had suicidal thoughts at some point in their lives. One third of participants also 
reported self-harming. Of those who reported self-harming, 24% had not accessed a 
mental health service. Similarly, 33% of those who reported having suicidal thoughts 
had not accessed a mental health service. 
 
Data for Secondary Mental Health Services in Leeds 
LPFT provide detailed information on patient demographics to the NHS Information 
Centre as part of the mental health minimum dataset (MHMD)1.  Data from 2009/10 
indicates that LPFT provided 19,576 spells of specialist mental health care to 18,331 
service users2.  This represents an access rate of approx 24 care spells per 1000 
population.   
 
 

                                            
1
 The MHMDS is derived from all the activity data collected in the Trust on the Patient Record 

Administration System (PARIS), aggregated into care spells. 
2 A care spell in the MHMDS is taken as ‘a period of specialist mental healthcare in the Trust during 

which the service user may receive different types of care, including inpatient, crisis resolution and 
from a community mental health team.’ It commences with referral and terminates with discharge.  
The MHMDS is only as accurate and representative of the data as inputted into PARIS by Trust staff.  
 

Page 115



 - 4 - 

Gender. In the reporting period women comprised 58% of the total care spells, 
roughly the same proportion as the previous year.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

There was significant male under-representation in access to Occupational 

Therapists and Consultant Psychotherapists (almost 10% less than expected). It 

may be that male service users are unable to access these services or feel 

discouraged from doing so. 

 

Page 116



 - 5 - 

Age.  There are more female than male care spells across all age groups. Both male 
and female care spells show an initial peak at 31-40 years. This may reflect the 
higher frequency onset of mental health problems in young adulthood. For males, a 
second peak occurs at 71-80 years, yet this is lower than the first peak and 
decreases rapidly towards later age groups, possibly reflecting lower male life 
expectancy. For females, the second peak at 81-90 years is the highest care spell 
level; care spells at age 65 and over account for 43% of total female care spells. This 
may reflect the increasing prevalence of age related dementia for older people as life 
expectancies increase. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 117



 - 6 - 

Ethnic Profile.  BME groups accounted for 9.8% of Trust care spells. However, BME 

groups accounted for 17.2% of inpatient care spells, suggesting a BME over 

representation in inpatient Care. 

 
There was variation in contact rate and the distribution of contacts among different 
ethnicities. For example, Mixed Ethnicity care spells averaged at 1 contact in 15 
days, whereas Asian or Asian British averaged at 1 contact in 22 days.  BME care 
spells are more likely to be on CPA. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 118



 - 7 - 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This map of Leeds shows the care spells per 1,000 population across the 
electoral wards of Leeds.3  (NB: Electoral ward population comes from ONS 
estimates of mid- 2007 population for 2009 wards.) 
 
 
 
 

                                            
3
 Electoral Ward Population Source: Mid-2007 Quinary Estimates for 2009 wards (experimental) 

http:/www.statistics.gov.uk/statbase/Product.asp?vlnk=13893 

Page 119



 - 8 - 

 
 
 
 
 
The highest rate was Armley, with 44 spells per 1,000 people. The lowest rate 
was in Wetherby with 6 spells per 1,000 people. However, care spells per 
population does not necessarily correlate with socioeconomics, as shown by the 
high rate in the Roundhay ward (33 spells per 1,000 people) possibly due to its 
older population (mean service user age: 61.5 years). 
 
Geographic proximity may be having an impact on service user numbers, for 
example with Wetherby GPs choosing to refer to North Yorkshire and York PCT 
mental health services in Harrogate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



 - 9 - 

 
4.2 Current Provision 
4.2.1 Service Provision – Current Partnership Model 
Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust (LPFT) provides specialist mental health 
services to adults within the Leeds metropolitan boundary.   
 
For a number of years specialist mental health social workers have been co-located 
with LPFT teams.  The majority of mental health service users referred for adult 
social care services come to the attention of Social Care staff via multi-disciplinary 
team meetings within LPFT.  The service users are individuals from the age of 16 
upwards who have complex mental health needs, requiring a multi-agency and multi-
professional approach under the Care Programme Approach (CPA) framework.    
 
Service users with complex needs who use a range of services have a Care Co-
ordinator within CPA.  It is the Care Coordinator’s job to ensure that a service user’s 
needs are met in a timely and appropriate way, and to maintain contact with service 
providers across sectors.  Care Coordination is about making sure the right services 
are responding to the individual’s needs in ways that have been agreed with the 
individual.  For most people their Care Co-ordinator will be a member of the CMHT – 
a nurse, social worker or OT.  In Leeds we also work in partnership with some 
voluntary sector organisations which provide specialist services and perform the 
Care Coordinator role for their clients. 
 
4.2.2 Access to Social Care Services 
There have been inconsistencies identified in the way in which people currently 
access social care services.  Social workers are deployed differently in adult and 
older people’s services.  In adult services social workers are typically integrated 
within the multi-disciplinary teams and share a caseload with health staff.  This 
means that some of the people that social workers are supporting would not have 
FACS eligible social care needs and some of the people nurses and OTs work with 
will have eligible needs but will not necessarily see a social worker.  In Older 
People’s services social workers operate as a distinct team within the team and only 
work with people with an identified social care need. 
 
4.2.3 Self Directed Support. 
One of the advantages of social workers operating as part of the multi disciplinary 
team is that service users can access a range of health and social care services 
without needing to undergo additional assessment.  Health professionals have been 
able to access social care services on behalf of individuals without the need for 
additional processes and involvement of additional professionals.  However, in the 
last 18 months self directed support (SDS) has been rolled out in social care across 
Leeds.  This gives FACS eligible service users the option of opting for a personal 
budget in preference to pre commissioned services to shape and personalise the 
support they feel will best meet their needs. 
 
In older people’s services all eligible service users have an assessment for SDS and 
can make this choice.  In adult services only the social workers are trained in SDS 
and different professionals have differing knowledge base of the opportunities from 
SDS.  This has led to marked differences between over 65s and working age adults 

Page 121



 - 10 - 

with working age adults access to a personal budget being dependant on their Care 
Co-ordinator recognising that the individual may benefit from SDS. 
 
The figures for self directed support are detailed in appendix one and indicate that 
the numbers for mental health are low (these figures refer to under 65s as the over 
65s are included in older people’s services).  The target for mental health service 
users based on total number of people with mental health support needs accessing 
social care services is 300. 
 
4.2.4 Partnership Models in Other Areas. 
A Benchmarking exercise has been undertaken to look at models of joint working in 
comparative services (Sheffield, Barnsley, East Riding, Bradford, Lincoln and 
Nottingham) to consider good practice and lessons learnt in other parts of the 
country within their health and social care partnerships. 
 
4.2.5 LPFT Transformation Project. 
LPFT are concurrently running a project known as the Transformation project.  The 
aims of the Transformation Project is to ensure a sustainable, innovative and service 
user responsive Care Services Directorate it is essential to transform our clinical 
services into a new, accessible, care pathways orientated model of care delivery. In 
particular the proposed model will move the services from the current directorates 
into 3 integrated care pathways orientated directorates; 

 
• Acute Care Pathways,  

 
• Community Care Pathways 

 
• Regional/In reach Care Pathways  

 

The pathways will be supported by a Clinical Support Unit, aimed at reducing 
bureaucracy and improving interfaces with corporate services. Learning Disabilities 
will be reviewed at a later phase in the transition. 
 
The transition will improve access for service users and referrers, improve the 
delivery of health and social care services, protect posts in the current difficult 
financial climate and achieve savings of £8.7m by March 2013. 

 
The transformation programme of work will be complex and involve numerous 
stakeholders to achieve a successful outcome by March 2013. Staff and service 
users will be central to the redesign work. 
 
4.3 What do people think - Consultation? 
 
In considering making changes to the partnership arrangements between LPFT and 
LCC we have consulted with a wide range of stake holders. 
 
The consultation activities undertaken include: 
 

• A workshop for service users 

Page 122



 - 11 - 

• Building Your Trust Event 

• A series of workshops for health and social care staff 

• Meetings with commissioners 

• Discussion at the Joint Strategic commissioning group for mental health  

• A questionnaire emailed to all affected staff 

• Monthly drop ins and a regular newsletter for staff to update on progress 

• Project sponsors send a letter to all directly affected staff after each board 
meeting to update them on progress.   

• Project staff have visited staff teams and used these opportunities and the 
workshops to build a picture of what a health and social care partnership 
might look like. 

• There are a number of work streams in place to progress the project and all 
have health and social care membership. 

• An external facilitator has been commissioned by the Project Sponsors to 
undertake work with staff in both health and social care to identify areas of 
cultural difference and concerns for future joint working.  

 
In addition the Project team have attended further meetings to ensure wider 
coverage of the project scope and aims are achieved; these have included:  

• LPFT Board of Governors.  

• LPFT Staff side committee 

• Disabled Peoples/Older Peoples Board 

• Health Scrutiny 

• Adult Social Care Mental Health Managers meeting 
 
 
4.3.1  Service Users. 
Service users were invited to participate in a workshop in July to capture their 

experiences of health and social care services and to share what is important to 

them when accessing services. Posters were used to advertise the workshop across 

LPFT, ASC and the voluntary sector and staff were asked to promote the workshop.  

A summary of the comments are included at appendix 2.  There were about 12 

service users who attended the day.  

 

 The feedback from the event has helped shape the discussions with the staff teams 

on how the model of service delivery should look.  Whilst the number of service 

users attending this event was low the feedback they gave reinforced feedback from 

other stakeholder engagement that had been undertaken for different projects and 

proposals.  Broadly service users have told us that receiving appropriate help when 

they need it is more important to them than who provides that support and that they 

are being assessed too many times. 

 

A mix of service users and staff took part in a Building Your Trust event which was 

held in December.   

 
4.3.2 Staff. 

Page 123



 - 12 - 

There have been a number of methods used to consult with staff over the course of 
the project.  At the beginning of the project all staff directly affected by the proposals 
were emailed a questionnaire to give feedback on how effective they felt joint 
working was under the current partnership arrangements.  A summary of this is 
available.  Staff indicated that they thought things could be more joined up – 
particularly in terms of a shared vision and shared objectives and clear management 
lines. 
 
Staff have been kept informed of progress and invited to give comment and 
feedback through update letters, drop in sessions and regular newsletters.  They 
have had the opportunity to give their views on what works and doesn’t work within 
the partnership and on what good joint working should look like through a series of 
workshops in September and October.  Some management team members from 
both health and social care have been invited to be part of the workstreams 
progressing the project. 
 
Early in the project the team were concerned that health staff were less involved and 
engaged than social care staff.  The culture change work gathered opinions from 
both groups and one of the areas of feedback was that there was confusion around 
the fit of this work with wider transformation work that had just commenced within 
LPFT.  The project team had already identified crossovers and the two projects have 
more recently been joined so that the development of care pathways can be 
developed holistically, involving health and social care pathways. 
 
 
4.3.3 NHS and Adult Social Care Commissioners.  In considering the options 
around partnership working the providers have sought to involve health and social 
care commissioners. Regular meetings have been established with senior health and 
social care commissioners and the Programme Manager reports updates to the 
Mental Health Joint Strategic group whose membership includes commissioners and 
providers from across health, social care and voluntary sector.   
 
 
4.3.4 Referrers, Partner Organisations and Other Interested Parties.  Many of 

these organisations are represented through the MH Joint Strategic Group.  
The Programme Manager also updates a citywide mental health provider 
partnership group which brings together the voluntary sector umbrella 
organisations for older people, learning disability and mental health providers 
with LPFT and Adult Social Care. 
 

4.3.5 The proposal to explore a new model of partnership has been discussed at 
Policy Cabinet, as part of a scrutiny inquiry into support for working age adults 
with severe and enduring mental health problems and at Health Scrutiny. 

 
 
4.4 Workforce Profile 
To be supplied by HR departments 
 
 

  

Page 124



 - 13 - 

5 Overview of Fact Finding and Consultation 
 
From the evidence considered 
 
1) The evidence seen indicates that there is a difference in the way that older people 
and working age adults access social care services.  This can result in fewer working 
age adults being offered self directed support. 
 
2) Initially health staff were less involved in the project than social care staff and had 
a perception that the changes would only affect social care staff.  There was 
additional confusion around the fit with Transformation work taking place within LPFT 
clinical services. 
 
3) Within the lifetime of the project LPFT took a decision to review the delivery of 
clinical services and to redevelop these around pathways to streamline access to 
support services.  As both projects were looking at care pathways a decision was 
taken to join the projects.  
 
The potential impacts identified from redesigning the partnership are: 
 
Potential Impacts identified. 
 
There will be a positive impact for all stakeholder groups, both ASC and LPFT 
services provide equality of services and the integrated project will benefit all 
stakeholder groups.  
 
The redesigned service will impact positively on service users as the pathway 
through services will be more streamlined with less duplication of assessment.  
Service users should have equal access to services they are entitled to and be 
clearly signposted through the pathway to appropriate support. 
 
Staff will be supported to work in a holistic way considering the individual’s health 
and social care needs in terms of recovery, social inclusion and personalisation.  
Clear recording systems will be in place.   
 
In looking at single point of access the service needs to consider that not all social 
care work presents through secondary mental health services and those presenting 
through area offices need an equally prompt and smooth service. 
 
Consultation has identified that there is the potential for negative impact if a joint 
information and communication strategy across LPFT and ASC is not implemented.  
If service users are to experience a holistic, streamlined service clear pathways need 
to be in place to ensure peoples health and social care needs can be met by the 
service. 
 
Currently LPFT and ASC have two separate electronic patient data recording 
systems; it is proposed that an integrated information governance structure will be 
implemented; the introduction for this will be within the parameters of the project as a 
whole.  
 

Page 125



 - 14 - 

 
Action plan to ensure mitigation is in place 
 
Engagement with stakeholders needs to continue as pathways are determined to 
ensure that no equality group is disadvantaged.  

Page 126



 - 15 - 

 

Page 127



 - 16 - 

Appendix One 
 
Self Directed Support  
 

User Group As as 30/11/10 As as 31/12/10 As as 31/01/11 

 DP PB SDS SDAQ DP PB SDS SDAQ DP PB SDS SDAQ 

Older People 729 43 1837 143 732 50 1859 172 737 67 1883 220 

Learning Disability 114 28 117 9 113 31 123 8 113 32 125 9 

Physical Disability 316 53 155 18 316 56 155 23 316 66 157 31 

Sensory 
Impairment 27 3 7 0 27 3 7 0 27 3 7 0 

Mental Health 51 7 27 3 51 10 27 3 51 12 27 5 

Other 20 2 2 2 20 3 3 1 20 4 3 1 

Equipment (Phys 
Dis) 4 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 

Carers(inc 
Citywide) 404 0 0 0 404 0 0 0 404 0 0 0 

Unknown 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 

 
 
 
 

P
age 128



 

 

Report of Director of Adult Social Services 

Report to Health & Wellbeing & Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 

Date:  21 November 2012 

Subject: Update on Development of Integrated Neighbourhood Health and Social Care 
Teams and the use of risk stratification  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Integrated neighbourhood health and social care teams have been operating across three 
neighbourhoods in the City for six months. 

2. Rollout to a further nine neighbourhoods is underway with Citywide coverage by the end of the 
year. 

3. The ability to discuss cases with colleagues and access one another’s expertise has been one 
of the early benefits of this work.  Co-location has allowed health and social care colleagues to 
share knowledge and signpost individuals quickly to appropriate support.   

4. Work is now underway to develop more integrated care management system and  a 
neighbourhood  model for integrated teams clustered   around GP practices and their patients   

Recommendations 

Scrutiny Board are asked to note the progress in developing integrated health and social care 
services in Leeds ,endorse the direction of travel in developing and delivering improvements in 
how health and social care services are provided to Leeds residents and offer their support to 
these developments. 

 Report author:  John Lennon 

Tel:  2478665 

ANNEX 4 

Page 129



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides an update on the rollout of integrated neighbourhood health and 
social care teams.  It describes progress to date and future plans for development. 

2 Background information 

2.1 Many people who receive both health and social care support have to cope with two sets 
of professionals coming to see them, asking similar questions and assessing them for 
many of the same conditions and problems. Most of these people are living with one or 
more long-term conditions – and many are elderly. 

2.2 In some parts of the country, health and social care teams have begun to work closely 
together in a more integrated way. They have found that this more streamlined, joined-up 
approach often results in services which patients and carers say are better for them – 
and fewer people ending up in hospital or in long-term residential care. The White paper 
‘Caring for our Future: Reforming Care and Support’ set out a vision for a reformed care 
and support system with integrated services.  The Government has made available funds 
to support the transformation of services and plans to invest a further £100 million in 
2013/14and £200 million in 2014/15 in joint funding between the NHS and social care to 
facilitate development of better integrated care and support. 

2.3 In Leeds we are looking at how we can work together more effectively by developing 
integrated health and social care teams.  The development of integrated teams is being 
progressed together with two other key aspects of work: risk stratification – 
understanding the needs of the population and identifying those most at risk of needing 
high levels of health and social care support; and co-production and supported self-care, 
empowering individuals to take control of their treatment, care and support. 

2.4 GP practices, health workers, social care staff and patients are working more closely 
together to improve outcomes and quality of care for older people and those with long-
term conditions.   

2.5 This paper looks at progress to date since the first neighbourhood health and social care 
teams went live in April and describes some of the key plans for progressing this work 
further over the coming months. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 Demonstrator sites.  In April 2012 health and social care staff were co-located in three 
areas of the City – Kippax/Garforth, Pudsey and Meanwood.  These sites were 
established as demonstrators, working closely together to try out more integrated ways 
of working.  Social workers have been working alongside district nurses, community 
matrons, interface geriatricians1 , GPs and other practice staff to consider how we 
provide more joined up care and support. 

3.2 One of the early success stories with this work has been the ability to discuss cases with 
colleagues and access one another’s expertise.  Co-location has allowed health and 

                                            
1
 geriatricians who spend part of their time working in a hospital setting and part of their time working in the 
community 

Page 130



 

 

social care colleagues to share knowledge and signpost individuals quickly to 
appropriate support.   

3.3 Health and social care staff have also been able to carry out joint assessment visits to 
individuals in their own home.  This reduces the number of times that an individual has 
had to tell their story but it has also enabled health and social care staff to develop a 
much greater understanding of one another’s roles. 

3.4 Members of the integrated neighbourhood teams have also been forming links with local 
community groups and voluntary sector organisations, particularly neighbourhood 
networks.   

3.5 Staff from three existing demonstrator sites (Kippax/Garforth, Pudsey and Meanwood) 
have been looking at what impact establishing the demonstrator sites has had on ways 
of working so far. The intention now is to build on this approach and begin to test out a 
model of new, more integrated ways of working, between now and March 2013. Staff will 
firstly need to get an understanding of what input patients and service users currently 
have from different members of the team. They will then look at ways of working which 
will reduce the number of visits and professionals needing to be involved in that person’s 
support on a regular basis, with a view to moving to one individual staff member being 
able to carry out an assessment on behalf of more than one professional group. The 
team will also ensure there is a named link through to specialist services and a single link 
to each GP practice. As new referrals are received the team will identify those who have 
complex needs and require a joined-up response.  Assessment and care planning 
processes will be considered to see how these can be more joined-up, and Staff will 
consistently consider support available through the voluntary sector. 

3.6 Rolling out the model to other areas.  The demonstrators were the first wave of a 
rollout of the neighbourhood team model across the City.  In September an integrated 
neighbourhood team went live in Armley.  Hunslet and Chapeltown will ‘go live’ in 
October with co-location in the remaining six areas planned through November and 
December to give Citywide coverage by the end of the year.  A full rollout timetable is 
provided at the end of this report.-see appendix 1 

3.7 Risk Stratification and Multi Disciplinary Team meetings.  The development of 
integrated teams has been progressed with two other initiatives.  The first is the 
introduction of a tool (risk stratification tool)  into GP practices which allows GPs to see 
the pattern of health service use for all of the patients in their practice.  To date this has 
focused on access to a particular group of health services which are weighted within the 
tool to help identify people who are high users of health services now or may be in the 
near future.  From November this year we will be expanding the number of health 
services that are included and also be incorporating information on use of social care 
services to give a much fuller picture of the range of support an individual receives.-see 
appendix 2   

3.8 The addition of these services will not affect the weighting of individuals but will help in 
our goal of delivering better co-ordinated care as we can see at a glance who is involved 
in supporting an individual.  It will also give us a much fuller picture of those individuals 
that the tool has highlighted will be high users of health services in the future.  Where an 
individual is accessing lots of different services we will be able to use multi disciplinary 
team meetings with members of the integrated neighbourhood teams and GPs to discuss 

Page 131



 

 

whether all of these interventions are effective.  Where an individual is only accessing 
one or two services we will be able to consider whether this is appropriate to meet their 
needs or whether the addition of preventative support now may reduce the need for more 
intensive support later.   

3.9  Supported Self management.  The other work being progressed in parallel with the 
development of neighbourhood teams and the use of the predictive modelling tool 
described above is the development of a series of initiatives around supported self 
management.  This work is being progressed in partnership with voluntary and 
community groups, including Neighbourhood Networks.  Projects include social 
prescribing and timebanking.-see appendix 3 

3.10  Evaluation.  An External evaluation has been commissioned to consider the success of 
integration from different perspectives.  University of Birmingham and the Social Care 
Institute for Excellence have carried out some work to look at initial views of staff and the 
people who use services to the integration of health and social care.  A report is 
currently being produced but initial findings suggest that staff are generally optimistic 
about what can be achieved through integration.  People who use services and their 
carers have more mixed views on the impact that integration will have for them.  Some 
people see integration as a good thing but others wonder whether it will really make a 
difference to patient experience and outcomes. The University of Leeds is supporting the 
evaluation of the impact that integrated teams have on use of the health and social care 
system, notably how it impacts on hospital admissions and long term care placements. 

3.11  Customer feedback.   Through this work we want to ensure that - together with 
improvements to processes - changes in the way health and social care are delivered  
make a noticeable difference to the people that use our services.  We are collating 
questions and have developed a Frequently Asked Questions sheet.  We are also 
interviewing people who are happy to share their experiences.   

3.12  Communication.  With change on this scale communication is a challenge.  Within 
Leeds we have a large health and social care system and some staff are much more 
directly engaged with change at the moment than others.  A number of different medium 
are being used to keep staff groups updated and engaged including leaflets, reference 
groups, workshops and engagement events, newsletter, website and Youtube links. 

3.13  Next steps. Some of the next steps have been described above.  Whilst still in 
development the agreed neighbourhood team model will be rolled out across the City.  
The experience of staff in demonstrators will be used to test out and inform more 
integrated ways of working.  In addition to this we will be matching caseloads. This will 
involve health and social care staff considering the individuals they both support and 
working together to: 

• discuss the person’s needs,  

• think about whether that person would benefit from any additional support, and  

• make sure that the support the person already receives is as coordinated and 
seamless as it could be.   

Page 132



 

 

3.14  This work will start in Meanwood before rolling out across all 12 neighbourhood teams. It 
will allow us to build on the joint working staff have already been doing, but with a wider 
caseload. It will help staff develop their skills in managing patients with complex needs, 
and is expected to make a lasting, positive difference for the patients themselves.. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Consultation and engagement is taking place across the programme of work.  There is a 
Patient and Public Involvement Lead appointed to co-ordinate engagement activity 
across the projects and a Charter for Involvement has been co-produced.  There is also 
a virtual reference group of people interested in the work. 

4.1.2 Staff are involved in a number of reference groups and workshops that are running 
throughout the programme timescale to capture views and incorporate staff experience 
into the design of services.  Key stakeholders are represented on the Integrated Health 
and Social Care Board.  The external evaluation includes capturing staff and service user 
views and experiences. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The model being developed will have a consistent Citywide approach with flexibility in the 
system to be responsive to local needs.  For example work with Neighbourhood 
Networks is helping to build strong local relationships and understand the supports 
available within a local area. 

4.2.2 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of this programme of work. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This proposal is about working more effectively in partnership with other organisations to 
improve outcomes for the citizens of Leeds. and is line with the City Priority Plan 2011 – 
2015. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1    The integrated care pathways model aims to develop efficient streamlined services.  
These new pathways will remove duplication in management and in service delivery.  
This will improve the experience for service users in accessing a single service that can 
meet a range of support needs whilst maximising use of resources. 

 

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1  There are no specific legal implications that arise from this report. 

4.5.2  This report is eligible for call in. 

4.6  Risk Management 

Page 133



 

 

4.6.1  Formal project management methodologies are being applied to this work and project 
assurance is provided by the NHS Leeds Programme Management Office on behalf of 
the City Transformation Board.  Governance arrangements are in place and all elements 
of project delivery report into the Integrated Health and Social Care Board which meets 
on a monthly basis and has representation from all stakeholder groups. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 Development of integrated services in Leeds is moving quickly.  We have had teams 
integrated in three neighbourhoods for six months and now rolling out across Leeds to 
establish Citywide coverage by the end of the year. 

5.2 We have taken early learning and are building on this to further integrate the support that 
people with a mix of health and social care needs access. 

5.3 This work is being progressed in collaboration with staff and service users 

5.4 Early evidence from patients and Service users is that more integrated working brings 
benefits in the quality of those services and improvements in patient experience. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Scrutiny Board are asked to note the progress in developing integrated health and social 
care services in Leeds, endorse the direction of travel in developing and delivering 
improvements in how  health and social care services are provided to Leeds residents 
and offer their support to these developments.   

7 Background documents2 

7.1 Caring for our future: reforming care and support’ White Paper, DH 2012 

                                            
2
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 134



 

 

Integrated Neighbourhood Team Rollout Plan                                      Appendix 1 
 

West CCG  

Team Name / Area Pudsey 
 

Armley Middleton Woodsley 

Expected Go live  (1) April 2012 (2) 10th September (3)  7th November (4) 10th December  

Wards Covered  Pudsey 
Calverley & Farsley 
Bramley & Stanningley  

Armley 
Farnley & Wortley 
Bramley & Stanningley 

Morley South 
Morley North 
Middleton Park 
Ardsley & Robin Hood 

Weetwood 
Adel & Wharfedale 
Kirkstall 
Headingley 
Hyde Park & 
Woodhouse 
City & Hunslet 

 
North CCG 

Team Name / Area Meanwood 
 

Chapeltown Wetherby Yeadon 

Expected go live  (1) April 2012  (2) 22nd October (3) 12th November  (4) 10th December  

Wards covered  Moortown 
Alwoodley 
Roundhay 
Chapel Allerton 

Burmantofts & 
Richmond Hill 
Chapel Allerton 
Gipton & Harehills 
City & Hunslet 

Wetherby 
Harewood 

Otley & Yeadon 
Guiseley & Rawdon 
Horsforth 
Adel & Wharfedale 

 
South & East CCG 

Team Name / Area Kippax 
 

Hunslet Seacroft Beeston 

Expected go live (1) April 2012 (2) 19th November (3) 19th November  (4) 17th December  

Wards covered  Kippax & Methley 
Garforth & Swillington 
Harewood 

City & Hunslet 
Rothwell 
Middelton Park 
Ardsley & Robin Hood 
Beeston & Holbeck 

Temple Newsam 
Killingbeck & Seacroft 
Harewood 
Roundhay 
Cross Gates & Whinmoor 

Beeston & Holbeck 
Morley North  
City & Hunslet 

GREEN – completed 
RED – completion due Nov & Dec 2012 

P
age 135



 

 

 
Appendix 2 

 

RISK STRATIFICATION PROJECT – UPDATE TO SCRUTINY BOARD 

 
  

1.   Introduction 

1.1 The Risk Stratification project is a key component of the Leeds Health and Social 
Care Transformation Programme and provides essential data to help to identify 
patients who are most at risk of needing services in the future and would therefore 
benefit from a more proactive approach to diagnosis and management of disease. 

 
1.2  This report details what risk stratification is and how it will benefit services within 

Leeds. It outlines progress to date, an overview of the planned action to implement 
phase 2 of the risk stratification tool, the work that has been completed to support 
use of risk stratification outputs by integrated health and social care teams, and 
proposals for further development of the approach to risk stratification in Leeds.  

 

2.    What is Risk Stratification?  

2.1 Risk Stratification is based on an algorithm that brings together various elements of 
data about patients and uses it to calculate their risk of needing a greater level of 
support within the following 12-month period. Within Leeds the model used is the 
`Adjusted Clinical Group` model developed by John Hopkins University. It assigns 
people to unique categories based on patterns of disease and the expected 
resources that will be needed to treat and support that person.  

2.2   Within Leeds, Phase 1 of the tool incorporated the age, sex, primary care data 
(diagnosis, pharmacy), hospital data (care episodes) and healthcare cost for each 
patient providing information to help identify those people with complex clinical 
needs, and recording their current and future clinical profile, cost and risk of 
hospitalisation. 

 

2.3   The tool supports primary care teams to manage their patients, measuring the 

health needs of individuals to help us plan how best to support them, allocate 

resources where needed most, and address health inequalities across the city. 

 

2.4  A further key aim of the tool is to give us a view across the wider health economy 

using diagnostic and pharmacy data to get a clear picture of the local population 

profile and disease burden, as identify how resources are used and can be 

managed effectively.  

 
 
 
 

Page 136



 

 

3.  Benefits of the Risk Stratification model  
 
3.1  Within Leeds risk stratification is being utilised to identify those patients most likely 

to be high future resource users, and those who could benefit from more intensive 
interventions.   In effect, the risk stratification tool can assist the integrated health 
and social care teams to target intervention where it can have the greatest effect, 
enabling a proactive approach aimed at supporting people living independently at 
home for longer. 

 

3.2  A further benefit is to realise the potential uses of risk stratification outputs to inform 

future commissioning. The tool can assess what resources are being used to 

support people and can aggregate resource consumption at any level in the health 

system, including GP practices and at CCG level. Resource allocation can be made 

on the basis of actual need, built up from patient level. This will enable the tool to 

forecast costs and financial risk within a given period.  

 

4.  Implementation of risk stratification in Leeds  
 
4.1 Roll out commenced in the three demonstrator sites for integrated health and social 

care teams and now 111 out of the 112 GP practices across Leeds have got risk 
stratification in place. An intensive training programme for practices and members 
of integrated health and social care teams has been implemented to support the 
effective use of the risk stratification tool.  

 
4.2  The three CCGs have supported the establishment of multidisciplinary (MDT) 

meetings in all practices, bringing together GPs, other practice staff and members 

of the integrated health and social care teams to use the outputs from the risk 

stratification process to identify and review people who would benefit from a more 

proactive joined-up approach to their care.  For this year, all practices are holding a 

minimum of two MDT meetings, to try out this new approach, and share and spread 

good practice.  It is expected that the frequency of these meetings will increase in 

the future as we begin to understand what works and how the greatest impact can 

be gained.  

 

5.  Implementation of Phase 2 of the Risk Stratification tool  
 
5.1  Following the introduction of phase 1 of the tool, we collated and took into 

consideration all of the practice feedback provided.  An example of this feedback 
was the amount of time required to search through a list of patients. As a result the 
second phase of the tool includes NHS numbers and a patient search function 
which will greatly reduce the time needed to carry out this work. The inclusion of 
patient identifiable data and especially NHS numbers is significant as it means there 
is no longer a requirement for staff to search across clinical databases, during, for 
example, MDTs.    

 
5.2  Further enhancements include an improved patient summary, including BMI and 

smoking status. Alongside this is an enhanced timeline that enables the member of 

Page 137



 

 

staff to see in graphical representation the patient journey over the last 12 months, 
how many times the patient has been to their GP, number of out patient 
appointments, whether the patient has attended A&E and so on.  

 
5.3  Finally, a Data Sharing Agreement has been signed off between Adult Social Care, 

Leeds Community Health Care and Leeds and York Partnership Foundation Trust 
to enable the uplift of data into the risk stratification tool. This will allow data from 
these agencies to be incorporated into the risks stratification tool, including the 
patient timeline, detailed above.  

 
5.4  The expectation is that phase 2 will `go live` to practices by the end of October 

2012.  

 
6.  Support and training to Integrated Health and Social Care staff  
 
6.1  Between January 2012 and March 2012 473 health and social care staff were given 

comprehensive training and support to use the Risk stratification tool at various 
levels of specificity.  

 
6.2  With the introduction of phase 2 of the risk stratification tool, some additional 

training has been offered to update staff on the additional features of the risk 
stratification tool. Additional 1:1 training and group staff target sessions will be 
provided upon request. 

 
6.3  An e- learning package has been created and shared with practices throughout 

Leeds.  This e- learning resource will aid staff whilst navigating the tool.  
 
6.4  A risk stratification helpdesk has been established to provide practices with a 

specific resource to resolve any incidents that may arise. This will be 
complemented by an intranet site to be used as an easily accessible information 
resource to keep staff aware of any developments.  

 
7.  Developing a predictor for future social care usage  
 
7.1  The risk stratification tool is specifically a healthcare system and does not currently 

provide predictive information about future social care usage.  In Leeds we are keen 
to develop our approach so that we have predictive information about an 
individual’s likely future of health or social care services.  This has not been done 
anywhere in the country and so we are currently considering options to support 
work with an academic partner review and identify how the predictive model may be 
developed to benefit social care delivery.  

 
 

James Hoult 

Risk Stratification Project Manager 

October 2012  

 

Page 138



Appendix 3 

 

Timebanks 
 
A timebank is a system of exchange where people are able to trade skills, resources 
and expertise. For every hour participants ‘deposit’ in a timebank by giving practical 
help and support to others, they are able to ‘withdraw’ equivalent support in time 
when they need something doing themselves. A timebank is usually run by a ‘broker’ 
who facilitates and records exchanges between individuals and plays an important 
role in the safe and secure running of the timebanki. 
 
Timebanks are based on the key principles of co-production, which include: 

• Asset model – Timebanks work on the principle that everyone has something 
to offer and all offers are valued. 

• Reciprocity – Timebanks are based on a two-way transaction between people, 
which fosters a culture of mutual support. 

• Social capital – A timebank creates a social network which requires on-going 
investment by its members. 

 
As part of the health and social care integration pilot in Garforth, the local 
Neighbourhood Network, Neighbourhood Elders’ Team, have developed a timebank 
‘Time to Share’, which will be officially launched in early November. The timebank will 
be a way for people in the community to come together to share skills with the aim of 
improving people’s self-value. The timebank will be linked with the local GP practice 
who will refer people to it as appropriate. 
 
Also due to launch in November is the Ladybird Timebank which will operate in 
Headingley. The timebank received a small start-up grant through Adult Social Care’s 
Ideas that Change Lives investment fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

                                            
i Timebanking UK (2011), ‘People Can’ 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT FOR SCRUTINY BOARD 21 NOVEMBER 2012 
 
Integrated CIC Bed Programme South Unit (ex Harry Booth House) 
 
In February 2012 Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and 
Adult Social Care) considered a report from the Director of Adult Social Care 
that provided an overview of the development of the City’s first intermediate 
residential care facility in the south of Leeds.  
 
The service will form an integrated part of a seamless continuum of services 
linking health promotion, preventative services, social care, and support for 
carers and acute hospital care.  It supports the future commissioning priorities 
of Adult Social Care to work with health partners to reshape services at the 
intermediate tier and provide a service that is responsive and prevents older 
people needing access to more intensive health and social care support 
services. 
 
More specifically this jointly commissioned community based service will 
provide short term assessment, rehabilitation, re-ablement and recovery care, 
delivered by an integrated health and social care team lead by Leeds 
Community Healthcare Trust in a residential community setting 
 
Based at ex Harry Booth House in Beeston, the service aims to:  
 

• Enable older people to return to and remain in their own home and to 
prevent avoidable admissions to hospital and into long-term care.   

 

• Promote an ethos of re-ablement with the aim of maximising the 
independence of service users. 

 

• Work in a co-ordinated and integrated way with complimentary 
community based health and social care services and share the 
responsibility for achieving improved customer outcomes  

 

• Provide a high quality recovery and reablement service within in a safe 
environment  

 
Since the submission of the last report to Scrutiny Board, much more detailed 
negotiations have taken place with NHS Leeds Community Healthcare Trust 
aimed at developing this new operating model integrating clinical, therapeutic 
and social care staff within a single intermediate care unit. In terms of works 
required to ex Harry Booth House, the primary focus has been on the 
extensive changes to the building required to reach the very high levels of 
infection control required to promote faster recovery from illness thereby 
preventing unnecessary acute hospital re- admission and premature 
admission to long-term residential care. Complex discussions on the physical 
changes required extended the design process and delayed the operational 
date beyond that originally reported to Scrutiny Board.  

ANNEX 5 

Page 141



Following the consideration of a design and cost report to Executive Board in 
June 2012, the refurbishment of ex Harry Booth House to provide the first 
integrated intermediate care unit was approved and included within the 
Council’s Capital Programme. Following a tender process, work to adapt ex 
Harry Booth House commenced in October 2012 and is progressing to 
programme. The new unit will be handed back by the contractor in early 
February giving time for furniture and specialist equipment to be installed and 
IT and nurse call/telecare systems to be commissioned. 

The planned operational date for the south unit is the 1 April 2013. 
Recruitment of the clinical team by Leeds Community Healthcare Trust is now 
well underway in preparation for the opening of the unit. Care and support 
staff from ex Harry Booth House will be offered the opportunity to return to 
work in the new unit should they wish. The Council will retain ownership of the 
building and provide all hotel services under the new integrated 
arrangements.  

Key performance indicators have been drafted by commissioners to monitor 
improvements on baseline data supplied from the existing dispersed CIC beds 
and Seacroft V Ward. These include: 

• reductions in length of stay 

• increased numbers of referrals from the community 

• reductions in the levels of health associated infections 

• reductions in dependency at discharge 

• reduction in transfers to hospital and long term care 

• service user satisfaction 

A new name for ex Harry Booth House will be unveiled in the near future 
following consultation with the Executive Member for Adult Social Care, local 
members, local community groups and ex residents of Harry Booth House. 

 

 

 

 

Page 142



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Well-Being and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 November 2012 

Subject:  Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England: Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber) – referral to 
the Secretary of State for Health (draft report) 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

 

Summary of main issues  
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present the draft report of the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber) to support its referral of the Joint 
Committee of Primary Care Trusts’ (JCPCT) decision around the reconfiguration of 
Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical Centres across England.   

 
2. The Joint HOSC is scheduled to meet on 16 November 2012 to consider its draft 

report, which is attached for consideration by the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing 
and Adult Social Care). 

 
Background 
 

3. Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England were 
launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011, running until 1 July 2011. 

 
4. In October 2011,  the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and 

the Humber) (Joint HOSC) agreed its consultation response and a detailed report.  The 
Joint HOSC subsequently referred its formal report to the Secretary of State for Health 
on the basis of inadequate consutation. 

 
5. At its meeting on 4 July 2012, the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 

implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the following 
surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 8

Page 143



 

 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
6. At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision and 

the associated Decision-Making Business Case made the following resolutions: 
 

(a) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(b) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of the 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber), a 
draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of State for Health 

 
7. At its meeting on 25 July 2012, the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult 

Social Care) considered an update on the work of the Joint HOSC and received an 
update from the Chair in this regard.  Members of the Scrutiny Board discussed the 
details presented at the meeting.   

 
8. Such were the implications of the JCPCT’s decision on the LGI and patient care in 

Leeds, that the Scrutiny Board concluded that it was appropriate to refer the decision to 
the Secretary of State. 

 
9. .  
 
Recommendations 
 
10. To consider the attached information and determine the content of the Scrutiny Board’s 

referral report to the Secretary of State for Health,  in this regard.  
 
7.0  Background documents1   

None used 

 

 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not 
include published works. 

 

Page 144



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber) 

Date: 16 November 2012 

Subject:  Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England: Referral to the 
Secretary of State for Health – draft report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

 

Summary of main issues  
 
1. Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England were 

launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011, running until 1 July 2011. 
 
2. At its meeting on 4 October 2011,  the Joint HOSC agreed its consultation response 

and outline report.  The Joint HOSC submitted its formal response to the consultation 
on 5 October 2011 and subsequently issued a formal report to the Joint Committee of 
Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) – as the appropriate decision-making body – on 10 
October 2011. 

 
3. At its meeting on 4 July 2012, the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 

implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the following 
surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
4. A formal response to the Joint HOSC’s report was received on 18 July 2012 and 

considered at the Joint HOSC’s previous meeting on 24 July 2012. 
 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Page 145



 

 

5. At the same meeting (24 July 2012) the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 
and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard from 
a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
6. At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(a) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(b) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of the 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber), a 
draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of State for Health 

 
7. The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above. 
 
Recommendations 
 
8. That the Joint HOSC: 

a. Considers the details presented in draft report and identifies any necessary 
amendments; and, 

b. Subject to any amendments, agree the report for submission to the Secretary of 
State for Health. 

 

Page 146



 

 

1.0  Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health of the decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care 
Trusts (JCPCT)  decision in relation to the review of Children’s Congenital Heart 
Services in England and the reconfiguration of designated surgical centres. 

 
2.0  Background information 
 
2.1 Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England 

were launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011, running until 1 July 2011 
 
2.2 At its meeting on 4 October 2011,  the Joint HOSC agreed its consultation response 

and outline report.  The Joint HOSC submitted its formal response to the 
consultation on 5 October 2011 and subsequently issued a formal report to the Joint 
Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) – as the appropriate decision-making 
body – on 10 October 2011. 

 
2.3 A formal response to the Joint HOSC’s report was received on 18 July 2012 and 

considered at the Joint HOSC’s previous meeting on 24 July 2012. 
 
2.4 The Joint HOSCs report highlighted a number of areas that it believed required 

further and more detailed consideration, while the overall view of the Joint HOSC 
was that any future service model that did not include a designated children’s 
cardiac surgical centre at Leeds would have a disproportionately negative impact on 
the children and families across Yorkshire and the Humber. This view, as detailed in 
the full report, was specifically based on the evidence considered in relation to: 

 

• Co-location of services; 

• Caseloads; 

• Population density; 

• Vulnerable groups; 

• Travel and access to services; 

• Costs to the NHS 

• The impact on children, families and friends; 

• Established congenital cardiac networks; 

• Adults with congenital cardiac disease;    

• Views of the people across Yorkshire and the Humber 
 
2.5 In October 2011, the Joint HOSC referred this matter to the Secretary of State for 

Health on the basis of inadequate consultation.  The outcome of this referral was 
that, while the consultation arrangements overall were deemed satisfactory, there 
was agreement that some of the information requested by the Joint HOSC (namely 
the PwC report that tested the assumed patient travel flows and clinical networks 
under each of the four options presented for public consultation) should have been 
made available ahead of the consultation deadline. 

 
2.6 Additional comments on the findings of the PwC report that tested the assumed 

patient travel flows and clinical networks under each of the four options presented 
for public consultation were issued to the JCPCT at the end of April 2012. 

 

Page 147



 

 

2.7 At its meeting on 4 July 2012, the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 
implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the 
following surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
3.0  Main issues 

3.1 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 
and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard 
from a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
3.2 At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(a) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(b) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of 

the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber), a draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health 

 
3.3 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above. 
 
4.0  Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report.   

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 When initially considering the potential impact of the proposed changes during the 
consultation period, the Joint HOSC considered a regional Health Impact 
Assessment (HIA) produced by the Yorkshire and Humber Specialised 
Commissioning Group (SCG) and a nationally commissioned Interim HIA report, 
produced by Mott McDonald. 

Page 148



 

 

 
4.2.2 Both reports identified potential negative impacts associated with three of the 

proposed options put forward for consultation.  In particular, the HIA interim report  
produced by Mott McDonald identified the following as vulnerable groups: 

 

• Children (under 16s)* who are the primary recipient of the services under review 
and, therefore, most sensitive to service changes; 

• People who experience socio-economic deprivation; 

• People from Asian ethnic groups, particularly those with an Indian, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi and other Indian subcontinent heritage; 

• Mothers who smoke during pregnancy; and 

• Mothers who are obese during pregnancy; 
 

These are defined as vulnerable groups because they are more likely to need the 
services under review and, are most likely to experience disproportionate impacts. 

 
4.2.3 A finalised Health Impact Assessment report has been completed (dated June 

2012) and was referenced as an appendix to the Decision-Making Business Case.  
A summary analysis of the impacts of the different configurations of surgical centres 
considered by the JCPCT was included within the Decision-Making Business Case 
document itself   This provided high level analysis (i.e. on a national level) of the 
total number of patients, including those living within vulnerable postcode districts,  
who would experience significant travel impacts under the various configuration 
models considered.  A regional breakdown of the overall numbers was not provided 
in the Decision-Making Business Case, however maps of the country identifying the 
vulnerable postcode districts experiencing significant travel time impacts are 
included in the final HIA report (June 2012) produced by Mott MacDonald. 

 
4.2.4 Prior to finalising its initial report in October 2011, the Joint HOSC requested a 

detailed breakdown of information on the likely impacts on identified vulnerable 
groups across Yorkshire and the Humber (as referred to in the Health Impact 
Assessment (interim report)).  This information has not been provided. 

 
4.3  Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

4.4  Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 Prior to completing its report in October 2011, the Joint HOSC was advised that the 
proposed model of care for the delivery of children’s congenital cardiac services 
was likely to result in an increased level of expenditure.  The Joint HOSC was also 
specifically advised of a likely significant increase in costs associated with the 
transport and retrieval service in Yorkshire and the Humber.   

4.4.2 Financial analysis details considered by the JCPCT were presented in Chapter 14 
of the Decision-Making Business Case. 

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

 

Page 149



 

 

4.6  Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

5.0  Conclusions 

5.1 At its meeting on 4 July 2012  , the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 
implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the 
following surgical centres: 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
5.2 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 

and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard 
from a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
5.3 At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(c) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(d) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of 

the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber), a draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health 

 
5.4 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above 

6.0  Recommendations 

6.1 That the Joint HOSC: 
 

(a) Considers the details presented in draft report and identifies any necessary 
amendments; and, 

(b) Subject to any amendments, agree the report for submission to the Secretary 
of State for Health 

 

Page 150



 

 

7.0  Background documents1   

None used 

 

 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not 
include published works. 

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

Date: 21 November 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule – November 2012 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1 Purpose of this report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 

 

2 Main issues 
 

2.1 The work schedule, as agreed at the previous meeting (24 October 2012) is attached 
at Appendix 1.  This incorporates the areas previously discussed and identified for 
inclusion in the work schedule, including the following matters raised at the October 
meeting: 

 

• Public Health transition update.  This will include details of any Public Health 
funding allocations that may have been announced (scheduled for January 
2013); 

• Progress update against the Local Account (scheduled for March 2013) 
 
2.2 Attached at Appendix 2 are the minutes from the Executive Board meeting held on 

17 October 2012.   
 
2.3 It should be noted, that the Chair of the Board has received a formal request from a 

member of the Board (Cllr Robinson) for the Board to examine ‘the matter of the 
'care ring' service in Leeds, the recent consultation and Adult Social Care's plan for 
this service’.  Councillor Robinson stated, ‘The consultation on an introduction of 
charges for this service could risk people opting out as they cannot afford it or refuse 
to pay, and may put elderly and vulnerable people at risk.’ 

 
2.4 Within the context of its overall work schedule, Members of the Scrutiny Board are 

asked to consider this request in more detail. 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  247 4707 

Agenda Item 9

Page 153



 

 
 

2.5 Following the Board’s consideration of the Core Strategy at its previous meeting, a 
copy of the Board’s statement agreed with the Chair is attached at Appendix 2 for 
information.  Members should note that the statement was presented to Scrutiny 
Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) at its meeting on 1 November 2012 and 
appended to the formal Scrutiny submission presented to Executive Board on 7 
November 2012. 

 
2.6 It should be noted that the work schedule is likely to be subject to change throughout 

the municipal year, to reflect any emerging issues and/or any changes in the Scrutiny 
Board’s priorities. 

 
3 Recommendations 
 

3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

a) Note the information presented; and, 
b) Consider the current outline work schedule and agree any amendments if/ where 

appropriate.  
 

4. Background papers1 

None used 

                                            
1
The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 154



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review June July August 
 

Dementia in Leeds  Draft Strategy 
 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

   

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

 Initial briefing around issues 
 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

Other (details defined)  • Review of Children’s Congenital 
Cardiac Services 

• Review of Services for Adults with 
Congenital Heart Disease 

 

SB 25 July 2012 @ 10 am  

Call-in – Decision around the 
replacement Adult Social Care 
Records System. 
SB 9 August 2012 @ 2:30 pm 

Briefings 
 
 

• Potential work areas/ topics 

• Equality Improvement Priorities 
 

SB 27 June 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking    

Performance Monitoring 
 

2011/12 Quarter 4 performance report 
SB 27 June 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

P
age 155



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 
 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Dementia in Leeds    

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

• Mental Health Needs Assessment 

• Current Provision  

• Leeds Suicide Audit  
 

SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

  

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

   

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

 Report to SB  
 

SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

 

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

P
age 156



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Transformation of Health and 
Social Care 

  Update reports from previous 
Scrutiny Inquiry, relating to:  
(a) Recommendation 7 – risk 

stratification 
(b) Recommendation 8 – integrated 

health and social care teams 
(including lessons from 
demonstrator sites) 

(c) Recommendation 9 – 
partnership arrangements ASC 
/ LYPFT 

(d) Recommendation 10 –  update 
on general governance 
arrangements associated with 
service integration 

(e) Recommendation 11 – Harry 
Booth House progress 

 

SB 21 November 2012 @ 10 am 

Other (details defined) Update on Services for the Blind and 
Visually Impaired 
 
SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

Consideration of the draft Adult Social 
Care Local Account 
 

SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

Health Service Developments 
Working Group – update on the 
work of Clinical Commissioning 
Groups  
 

WG date to be determined 

Briefings 
 
 

  Transformation of Health and 
Social Care – overview of the work 
of the Transformation Board 
 

WG 7 November 2012 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

P
age 157



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review September October November 
 

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 1 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

SB 26 September 2012 @ 10 am 

• 2012/13 Quarter 1 performance 
report (Pubic Health) 

 
SB 24 October 2012 @ 10 am 

 

P
age 158



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review December January  February 
 

Dementia in Leeds  Update on Strategy and Action Plan 
 

SB 23 January 2013  @ 10 am 
 

 

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

WG – date to be determined  WG – date to be determined 

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

WG – date to be determined  WG – date to be determined 

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

   

Other (details defined) Care Quality Commission – local activity 
report 
 

SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 
 

Quality Accounts: Updates on progress/ 
priorities identified in 2012 from: 

• LTHT 

• LYPFT 

• LCH 

• YAS (particularly focus on Patient 
Transport Service performance/ 
progress) 

To include commissioner assurance – NHS 
ABL/ CCGs. 
 

SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 

Update on progress against the Leeds 
Tobacco Action Plan and previous 
Scrutiny Board recommendations. 
 
Public Health transition update – to  
include details of any Public Health 
funding allocations that may have been 
announced. 
 

SB 23 January 2013  @ 10 am 
 
 
Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

Update on Services for the Blind 
and Visually Impaired 
 

SB 20 February 2013  @ 10 am 
 
Draft Quality Accounts for 2012/13 
from: 

• LTHT 

• LYPFT 

• LCH 

• YAS 
To include commissioner 
assurance – NHS ABL/ CCGs. 
 
SB 20 February 2013  @ 10 am 
 

P
age 159



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review December January  February 
 

Briefings 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 2 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

 
SB 19 December 2012 @ 10 am 
 

  

P
age 160



Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 2012/13 Municipal Year         Appendix 1 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 
 

Updated: November 2012 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review March  April May 
 

Dementia in Leeds    

Mental Health Services in 
Leeds 

   

Loneliness and Social 
Isolation 

   

Balancing planning 
authority duties with future 
public health 
responsibilities 

   

Review of Partnership 
effectiveness and associated 
arrangements 

Annual Assessment by the SB 
 

SB 27 March 2013 @ 10 am 

  

Other (details defined) Progress update against the Local Account 
SB 27 March 2013 @ 10 am 
 
Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

Health Service Developments Working 
Group  
 

WG date to be determined 

 

Briefings    

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

• 2012/13 Quarter 3 performance report 

• NHS Airedale Bradford and Leeds 
Cluster – performance report  

SB 27 March 2013 @ 10 am  

  

 

P
age 161



P
age 162

T
his page is intentionally left blank



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

����������	
���
�

��������������
��
	���������
�

���������
�

�
	���������� ��������	�����������

� �
	�������!�"�� ���#����	��$�%�
�	��
&�'�(����'�#
�����	��	��)�*�������

�
� � � �
	������&��(	���+�,
�����
���#������
� � � �
	��������#������	�+�,
�����
���#������
� � � �
	������!�$������+�,
�����
���#�������
�
�

��� ��������� �! "� #���
-	����������������./��
������	��������	�#� �	��$����
���&
����01��
�
	�������!�$�������&��(	����	����#������	�(�����	������������	������
�����	��	�����������
	�������)���������,�%��	��	��'�2���	�
��������������(�����������
�����������������������������	�����������
�����	�0��
�

$�� �% "&���'()#"*��)'�+��)����, ��%-,���)'�)(��. ��# ���*'/����,�-��
���
0���1�3���������
���������/��
�����������������	���
��	������
�	��������	����������(�	�����������������	��������	���������/�����	�
������
	���������������� ������	����(�������	��
����������
��	���������
���	�������������	��
����������������	���������������������������
�����
(���������	��������(
������������
�������������/������	������	���
�����	�����������(�45�
�
6�7� )���	��/���������������������������	�#�	
����0�89�
	����������������

)��������:	������	�$����
���&
�����09617��	��)���	��/���������
�����������
	����������������)��������:	������	�$����
���&
���
��096;7�	�������
	�������������	������	��	���	���(����	�����
)���	����������������������	�	��������
��	���������������	��������
����
����	�6�	��
��	�������
�����������	��������	������	70�,�������������
)���	��/������������������(����������	����	������
��������
��������	���������������3
���(������)���	��/����	��
������������������
<�������3��������	���	���������(��	����������2� �������	��
'�����������
	���0��:���������������	������������������
������	��������	�
���	���	�	�������	��	����)���	��/����	��������/�����
�(����������
�
������	��������	��������	�������	������	0��

�
6�7� )���	��/�"�������������������������	�#�	
����0�=��
	��������������

��)��������:	������	�$����
���&
�����09617��	��	�������
	���
���������	���	���	������	�������	����������	�	������	���
��	������������
��%#>�+3(������	�������
	���0�3����
������	��������	����	���	�	������
�/�����	��	�������	���)���	��/�"�
�(�����������
������	��������	�
�������	�������	������	��������	���������������������	���	��
�	������	��	����	�	�������������(�������������������(
�������������
������������
��	�����������
	�����	��%#>�+�3(����0��

Page 163



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
�

$��  -,*#*��)'�)(���-,)�*�, �� -�'�*#2�*'/�
�. #��'� # �����
�
	������%�
�	�����������	�?*�����,��	�����	��:	������@��	���������������
���������	���	���(����	����	������������?"����������$��������+�*
�����
����������	�����������3(���(�$�������,����@����������������'.)A�
)�������3�
���6#�	
����0�=8�������70�
�
�
	�������!�$�������	���(	����������������?*�����,��	�����	��:	�������@�
�	������������������������	���	���(����	����	����������1�?&����(���
%���	�	���)���	����	����	������2� �����@���9�?�����2� ������$�
��
3��	�����A
	�@���;�?,
�����������'�����&����%�(���$�� ���@��	���B�?��(�
%�	�����	�3��	�����6�%37�,�����@���
��������������������������	��	�����
�����2� ������:	���������3��	�����)
�������6#�	
�����0�=���=���=���	��=1�
������������������70�
�
)��
���������������	�(���������������������	���	����������	��6#�	
����0�=��
������70�
�

$�� !�'�� ���
���
0���1�3����������	
���������������	�������	�;���,���������������
����������������������������0�
�
0�����������3�00��
�

$4� 5*#()#�.�0 ���# �� '�# ��
A
��������#�	
����0���;��1����#��������������������������������������	��
�
�����������������������	�������
���	�������	��	���������������./��
�����
"��������
��	����/��������������������
	����)�����3��	�����6�)37���
%�������'���
�����	����������,�����$���	�������3�
��0�:	�������	������
����������
���	���	�(���������������	������������
���������)3��������
�	�����������������	������������	����������	�����%�������'���
�����	���0��
�
$���������������	���"����#��������������������������	��	�����������	��
�����	��	��������.C
�����������������������	��	��:	�������	�,����	�	��
��
��	���(�����(�������	������������������	���������	�
��������
#���������������������	���	������	������������(��	��	������	������
������0���
�
3���"�������������
���������(� �(������������	�
	����� �	����
������
����
�����������������	���������	�����������	������	�����(����
���������������
�����������������
�������� �	�(��	�� �	����������������������	�����
�������	������(���������������0��
�
#�����������������������	�������	�
�����������������������	����
���
��������(����� �	�(��	��	������	�����	��������
	����)�����3��	������
�	������
�
��0�
�
�
�

Page 164



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
6�7� 3������������������/������������	������������
	�������������	�����

��%�������'���
�����	����������,����$���	�������3�
������
����	��	
��0�

�
6�7� 3����%�������'���
�����	������������	���
	�����
	������	�����	��

	�;80;��
�������(�� 0�
�
6�7� 3���������
	������� �����	�����	������	�������(��������,����

$���	�������3�
���6�	��������	����������������7�(����������������� �	��
���/��	��������	�	���
������	��;80;��
�������(�� 0�

�
$6� �)�#�/ �7#*'- ���. �5#*'/� &*#���'��)#8�.�# ��

3��������������������������	���
����������������
���	�	�������������
��������D3���%��	���E����F���3���3
�����A��	����	�2� �����0�3���������
���������������������������
	�������	�����������	���	���
��������������
�	�����	���������	��(����?���������2� �����@��	�����������	������3
����
'������	�����	����
����(�����������������������0�
�
3���"�����������������������	�����	������
	�������������������	����D3���
%��	���E����F�(
��������	�����������������������	����������	0�#�������
���	�����
������������	�������	�	��������������	������������(��������	������
���	���	�����(���������������"����#��������	��%�
��'�������(
���
�����������
����
��������	������������
����������0�:	�������	��(��	�����������
�	�����	������
����(���� 	(	�����(�����C
�����������������	�������
#�������(���� �����	��������������������0�
�
A��(�	���	��������	���)���	���������	�����������
���������������
�����	���������/�����
	����)��������:	������	�$����
���&
������09617�
�	����096;7���������������(�����(�����	���������	�����������������	��
��	�
�����������	������(����
�
���
0���1�3����(���������	�
���	���������'�������������
	�����
�����������
������������������������������./��
���������	�����	���	�
�������	��(����?���������2� �����@��	���������	�����'�����������
	����
���	����������������	���������	������%��	���E�����(����	�����������������
���
���	���(����	������/���������	�������������
�������������0�
�
��0���
���0������
�

$9� ��#*� :2�()#�5); #'*'- ��'��'� :#*� /��)#8�':�<��.�� *,�.��
3�������������)�
���,���������
�����������������������	���������	�����
(����������	����������������	�	���	����������������	����(��	��<,�
�������	�����	��������������������	��������'����)
��������
	���������
�
�������	�
�������	���
��������	������
�
��0�:	�������	����������������

�������	��	��	���
��������(�����	���	���(����	��������B�<������)�����	�
�������
����������������/�������������	�
����������	�	����	�����
	���������
�������
������
������
	����	������
��
�����G�	����������	�0�)��������������
��������������	��	��	��������	���������,����	��;�)������	�������������
G�	���������	�	������	����	������(��	�'�����������
	����)�
���,�����

Page 165



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

������	���<,�'������������
���������	��
���	����(����������������
,����	��;��������	���(
������
�������	�
����������	�	����	��
���
	������������(��	�������������<,����������������������������	��������
'����)
��������
	��������0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3������������������,����	��;��,����	��B���	��,����	��;B�

�������	��������������	�	����	�����	����<�������	��,����������
���
���������	�����0�

�
6�7� 3��������������������������������)�
���,�����,�����������������

�
�
����������	���
	����������������	����������������(����	�����
�
	���H���	����
��	��*���������������	�,������6./��
�����
A
	���	�7�����	���0�

�
6�7� 3����������	��������������������	���(��������
�G�����������������(�

������1���������
���	�������		
������
��	�������������	��������
���
����������	��	
�	��������	����	�����������	���0�

�
���
����������
��
�����7�����
���
�

$=� 7�'*'-�*,�� *,�.�!)'��)#�':�����>�4�+�!)'�.�9�� &)#���
3�������������&��
������
���������������������	��
�������
	���@��
��G��������	�	�����������������	��������I���1�������������	����������
��	�	���������0�
�
���
0���1�3����������G��������	�	����������	��������
������������������
�	������������	�	�������������	���0�
�

$�� 7�'*'-�*,���#*� :2����4��)�������
3�������������&��
������
�����������������������	��������������	������
����
�����	���������	�	����������������������
	�����������	���	������	�
	�����%���	��	�@������	������	�
�����	��/�������
�	�"
��	����&�����
&���	��	��	������������	���������	��������������	����������
	���@����	�	�����
��������0�
�
�	���	��(������������	����������������
	��	��������%���	��	�@����(�
<����"	
���	�����������	���������	�����	�����������	��������	��������������
'����)
����������
������'����0�#���������������������������������	������
�����������������(	��������������	���	������������
��	��������	��	�
'����0�:	�����	�������(�������������������5�������������	����	��(���������
��%���	��	���	�������	����������
���(������������	�������0�
�
&���	��	�����	��	C
���������"����(�����������(�������
��	�����������	��
��������	�������	��	�����������	�����(���������������������
������	��	��
�����������	���	���������	�����������0��
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������	��	����������
�����������������������(������������	�����

����3���	������	�
�����	��������������(����	��)���	��/�������	���0�

Page 166



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
6�7� 3����������	������������
������������	�������������	��������

�
	���@����	�	��������������(��������
����������������������������
�����	��������"�������������������
	���@��:	������"
�������������
������1I���90�

�
6�7� 3�����	����5�����������������
����������%���	��	���������	������

���
���(������������	���������
��	�����������	���	�������	���������(�
<����"	
���	��������0�

�
$$� 0  /�����2�� :�)'�	���' ����*� ���)),��

3�������������&��
������
�����������������������	��������������	����
�����������'����������&���	�6'�&7��
��	��������������
���	�	������
��	�����������	���	����� �	�������������'������������������D�����
�
������F��������'�&���0�
�
$���������������	���"����#��������������������������	��	�����������	��
�����	��	��������.C
�����������������������	��	��:	�������	�,����	�	��
��
��	���(�����(�������	������������������	���������	�
��������
#���������������������	���	������	������������(��	��	������	������
������0���
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������	��
��	���'�����(����	�������	������	���������������

�
��������	��������������'����������&���	������������0�
�
6�7� 3������������	�	�������	����	�����������	�����������
��������

������������������	����	��������	���������������	��������������	�����	��
����������������������������������������������&��
����0�

�
6�7� 3����������������������'�������
��������������D������
������F��������

���������0�
�
6�7� 3�������
��������������������	������������������������"����

�����	���	����������1I���9��
	��	�������������� 	(	�������������	���
������	�	�(�������������������	������ �	0�

�
$�� �)""�'��2���:.���)��.*,, ': ��

A
��������#�	
����0����6�7������#�������������������������&��
�����
�
����������������������	���	�
������	��������
	����&�������������	���
�	����������(��������������������	���	�����
	�����������"�������	�������(�
�����
	����(
����������	���������������	�(����	�����'�������)�������0�
�
#�����������������������	�������	�
�����������
	�������	�����	��(����
�
�����	�������	���������������������	���������	���������	������������������
(�����C
��������������
����������������
��������������"����	��(�����
�
	����(����	����	�����������������(�������
	�������	�����	���	�
������������������������	0�
�
�

Page 167



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������
�������	�������'�������)�����������
����	������	���0�
�
6�7� 3�����������(�	�������������������������	��
�	����
	����

&�������������	����/������	�����	�����������	�����45�
6�7� $$$-I$-��	��������������G�	�����	�������	���/������	J�
6��7� &�����	��#������������	�
������	������./��
�����"����

#������(���������	�������������������������������������	��
�	���������	������/������	����	���������������������
�/������	���./��
�����"���������������	J�

6���7�� '����	����
	����� �	�(����)����'���������J�
6��7�� )������������������G�	�����������$$$-I$-�������	������

�������������� �	�����
	����������� J�
6�7�� 3���������*�������$$$-��	��$��
����	��������������������
6��7�� 3���������	������������ �����������	�	��	��/������	��

�/�����(����������������./��
�����"���0��
�

6�7� 3����������	�������������������	��������������������	�(����	���������
���	�����������������������������������(����	�����
��	�6�7�����0�

�
6�7� 3������������������������(������	������	�����������������(����	�

����������101��������
�������������������
������0�
�
6�7� 3�������
����������������
��������������"����	��(������
	����(���

�	����	�����������������(�������
	�������	�����	���	�����������
��������������	0�

�
��� � ;� <�)(�5); #'*'- ��##*': " '����'�� ����)#8�.�# ��

3���)������	��������./��
�����6�
������)�������	��$������	��7��	������
�����������������������	���
����������G�	����������� �	���
������������
����
���������(��������������
	���	�������
	����� �	�(���������	��	��	�����
�
���������������	������������	��
���
�������	��
�����������,��������
%���	�	������������	���)
����������
�������&����(��	��
�������������
(�������������	�����������	���������������	����������������������������
����
�����0�
�
"��(������	��	���
���	������������������������./��
������������������
����
�����������������
����������������(���
�	����	�����������	��
���	�����������
����������������(���������	����	���������������������	�
����	������������	���	������	�����	��	������2� �����0��3���"����
(��������	�����������2� �������
	���������/���������	��	��������	����	��
�������������	�������	��������	����������������	����������	���)
�������
�����������0�
�
3����
������	�(���(������������������5��������������(
�������� �	��	�
���������������
������(� ��������������
��	��������	����������������	����
������	���)
������0�
�
�
�

Page 168



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������������������������
	������
���������������������(���������

�����2� ������)
���������6�	��
��	������:3)7������&����(���
����	�	�������	����	���������	�������	��������	������������	��
�	������	�����	��	������2� ��������
��
�	����,����	���8�������
'��������������.�	������������	���	���	���
���	�)������=�
�	��,����	�8��������'����3��	�����)������80�

�
6�7� 3��������������./��
������	��	�
�����	�(��������'����������
��������

���������	��������������	�������&����(���	��	�
�����	�(��������
����������2� ������)
��������0�

�
6�7� 3��������������./��
������	��	�
�����	�(��������'����������
��������

���������	��������������	�6�	��	�
�����	�(������������������
2� ������)
��������7�����������,���������������	���)
����������
�	��������	����./��
�����"�����	���
	������������&����(�
������	��������������	���)
�������(
����������������	��������
���	���������2� �����0�

�
6�7� 3��������������	��������������	��	�/��������	���������	�	��������(�

����������	������	��
��	�����������������������
������	�����������
,��������./��
�����"�����	���
	�������!�	
�������1��	������	���
�������(������� ������
	�����	�
�����	��	���
��������������
,�����������,��������!
������1���	������������	��������	����)�����
���9��������������	�����	�����������(�����	���
	��	���������������
����0�

�
���0
�!�������������
�
!��
�

��� � ����)#8�.�# ��,����#*'�&)#��7�'/��
3��������������������������	���
����������������������	���	�
������

�	��������������������������	��������	���������2� ������3��	�����
A
	���	��(������
���������������	��	
��������������	��(� ��(�����
(
����	������
������������	��������������	��
��������A
	���	������
������������������������������������������0�
�
&���	��	�����	��	C
��������
��	����(�������������������	������
������������	���������������
	����������K������	��	���������������
	��	��
�
������	�����0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������	��	����������
���������������	������	��/����	���0�
�
6�7� 3���������
��������������	���	����������	�������(� �	����������

2� ������$�
��3��	�����A
	�����������0�
�

��� ��&&)#���)��. �0  /���*�,�5#)<�.��*-8*: ��
3�������������&��
������	�����������������������������	���
����������
G�	����������� �	���	����	�������������	���������
	����������	����	�	�����
�������	������
������������������������'�����&����%�(���$�� ���0�

Page 169



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
3���"����(����	������������������,����������������������	���������(����
���������(����	�����������
	����(�����������	�	������������	���(������	��
�������(���,����	�1�������'����)
���������6'�	�7�)����=B10�<(������
#�������	���������������(����	������������	��(�������������	���
(��������	���(�������	����
	���� �����(� 0�:	�������	���	������(
���
���#����(���
��������������	������
��
��������������	�����(	��I���������
�	�����0�3��������������(�����	�,����	�1�(
���	�����������������(�����
�����������	����������	�
	���� �����(� ����	���	�������������(���	������
���������	�����������������(���(�������	�(���	������(�����������	���
(����	�����'�������)�������0�
�
A��(�	���	��������	���)���	��/�"��������
��������������������	��������
�/�����
	����)��������:	������	�$����
���&
������09617��(�����(���
�	���������	�����������������	��
��	������������	������(����
�
���
0���1�3�����	����	�������������	���������	��������
	����������	��
��	�	������������	������
������������������������'�����&����%�(���$�� �����
�
����������������
�G������������	�������	��������������	�����������	��
�	����	��(������	�
�������������
	���@�������	����������
���������������
�	���������	����������	������
��������./��
�����"���0����
�
6$�����������	��������	��������/���������	��/��������������	������
�
���C
�	������
��	��������������"������
	�������� �������������������
�����	����������	����������������	�����������������	����������
����
���	0�3����(����
�����
	�������� ������@�����	�����������	��� �	��
����(������������������%�(�	��$������A
	����	��(�	������������	��
��������	��������������������	���	�	������������0��
	������"�� ��
���
�������������	�����������������
����	�����������
���	�
�	�����
�/���������	��/��	�������
���C
�	���� �	������������
��	�70�
�

�4� � <�5 ' #*��)'��#*'�&)#��?�5�@��-. " ��
A
��������#�	
����0�������8���#������������������������������������	��
�
����������������������	���	�
������	�������(�%�	�����	�3��	�����
6�%37�����������(�	��������������	�����3��	����@���	�������	���
$��������.	����)������0�:	�������	�������������
������������������������
����������	G����	��	�����	��(�����(
����	�������3��	������	���� ��
*�����������
��������������,�����������,��������3��	���������(������
�	���
����	�������������������0�
�
:��(�����C
�����������(��	������������������������
������������������	����	�
�����������������������������	���
�������	��	��0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3���������	��	����������
�����������������	���0�
��
6�7� 3�����
��������������	������	��K��������������(����	������/����	��

��������$���������	���������������������������(�����(
���
�	�������3��	������	���� ��*�����������
��������������,���������
��,��������3��	���������(�������	���
����	�������������������0�

Page 170



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
�6� �,*''�':��&&,�-*��)'����:.<*2������ ��?�.�� ��*& #��=@��

A
��������#�	
����0��1;�������)��������������������������������������	��
�
����������������������	���	�
������	������
�������
���	���������������

	����� �	��	�������	��������#������	��������	������		�	�����������	��	�
(�����<���(�����������	��	�
����0�3����������	��
����#������������� �
���������	������
�������	�����
����������������	���
�����������	����
�����	��	
���	��������
���	��	��������	��������(���
���
���������������	0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3�����������
�����������
��	�������
�������
���	���#������

�	�
�����	��������������	���������(�����������������#������
������� ��/�����������	���0�

�
6�7� 3���������������������������
���	��������������������	������
���	��

�����0�
�
6�7� 3����������	������������	�����������������������
�����

�	������	������������5���������	���������������	���������������
������$��		�	��*�������(�����
�������������./��
�����#���������
������
������$��		�	���	��,
�����,���������	��������
���
��������(����	�������A
����
	����	����,�������������0�

�
�����
�!����
�

�9� 5#  '� *,�5)��*#,2��
3�������������.	���	��	���	��������
������
����������������
������	���	�
������	�������	�����		
	�������	������
	��������	�����
�������	�����������	������	 ������������������0�:	�������	�������������
����
�
������������	���������������	����K���8������	��	������������	������	���
�	����	���	�����5���1��	������ �����	��	��	����
�������K�������
�����������	����15�90�3��������������
��������������������������
���������(����������������	���	����� ���	�����������	����	����	�0��
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3����������������������������������������������(����	������	�1���

�����
�������������������������0�
�

6�7� 3�������������������	���
�������
������������
���	��'����������
&���	���������.	�����.������	���$��������6'�&��..$7���	����
����������(�����	�����6�7�������������������	��������6�7���
��	�����	�������������������������������� ��
�������������	��
�����	������������G���0�

�
6�7� 3�������������������	��������	G����	�����	�������
������������	��

������������	����.	���������������	�����	������	����K����8�9���	�
����/�
��������	����	����	������	������������	�������
�������������
(������������������	�������	�����0��

�

Page 171



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

6�7� 3�������������������	�������K��������������/����	��?�����-��
'����@��
�������������5���1������15���9������	��	��	������
����
������������	��0�

�
6�7� 3��������	����������
������������������������������������

.	���	��	���	��������
��������� ��������	���������	���	�
��������	�
���������������	������
��������
����0���

�
6�7� 3�������������������	�����	�5��	���������	��������	����	��	����
	��

��������	��	��
�
������������	������������	�����G������������
������
�������	���������%���	�������	����� ��	���
���������0�

�
���5�	
���

����0�����5��������
������������
�

�=� 5*"�,�':��-�����9���*� " '��)(�0�- '��':��),�-2��
3���<������'���	��	���	��&���������	��
����������������������	��������
��������������	�������������������		���������(�������%�����	��)������;�
,������	����'���	��	��$������	��(������
�������������������������������
������������
����
	����������������	�������	���(��������"
������	��$�����
A����(� 0�
�
���
0���1�3���������	��	����������
�����������������	�����	�����������
��������������������������9�����������������
����
	���������	�����
����������	���	��(��������"
������	��$�����A����(� 0�
�
63�������
��	�������������(����	��������	
���(����	�������������������:	�����
����
���������������	���	����
���������������������������
	������	���	��(����
�����
	���@��"
������	��$�����A����(� 7�
�

��� � ;� <�)(��0!
��##*': " '����
A
��������#�	
����0������1���������������������)������	��������./��
�����
6�
������)�������	��$������	��7��
���������������������	��
������
��� ��
	�������������(����
��	����	�����	������������	�'������	������
����������/��	������#�	�����	��)������	���(��������)'#*�����
�����	�
������	�������0�
�
&���	��	�����	��	C
���������"����(�����������(�������
��	�����������	��
�����	��
��������������(��������
	�����	��	���	�
�����	�(�����(
���
���
	����� �	�(������	�	����	��.�������#��������	������������	����������
�������	���
�
���)'#*�����	����	��0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3����������������
����������������������������./��
�����"����

�����	����	���������	�������������	6�7���������
�
�������	�	���
�	���������������	����	������������	�����	�����
	�����
��	���	�
'�������������(������	�
�����	�	������
�
����������	0�

�
6�7� 3�����	��/��	��	��	�������������	�������������)'#*���������������


����	�������������������	�����������(������������������(������
�	��
�����	���	���
���	������	����	����������	���0�

Page 172



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

�
���0���A�����������
�

�$� 	*��-��  /��#):#*"" �+�
��-)" �)(�-)"& ����)'���)��# *� ��<)�' <�
�#�"*#2��-.)),���
A
��������#�	
����0��8���9���!�	
�������������������������������	@��
,���������	����������������.	���	��	���	��������
������
����������
G�	��������	�����
��������(���������	�������������������	�(���������
�������	�<����������	��,
���'����0�3���������
���	�����������	����	�
������	�����������������������������
	�����	�(������������	���������	����
(�����(�����C
������������������	����������	������*����������0�
�
3���"����	����������������	����	���������	��������������	��
���	�����	�(�������
����������������
��(������	�����	����	����������	��
���������	�����	��������	�������
	�	�������������0�3���
�������	����	��(�����	�������	������������������	���
�������(����	�����
�
��������./��
�����"���������0��$����������
���	������������������"����
(�����������(�����������������������������	���
��������	��������������(����
����������	��	������	���������������	@��,�������0�
�
#���������������	���	���������	�������	������	��	
��������������	�
������	�����������������������	�����������
����(�������������
���(�������	��
�������
�	��������������	����
����	�������	0�:	�����	������(���
�
������������������#�������(�����	���������������
�������	�������	�����
(� �(�����(���	��	��������������������
�0�����
�
&���	��	�����	��	C
���������"����(�����������(�������
��	�����������	��
������������������������,��	����&���<
������������,���	��,�����
��������������	��������������������	������������	�(�����(
������������������
��������
������	���������0�
�
���
0���1��
6�7� 3�������������������	���������5*����������������������������	�����

	�(�9����������������������(�����B�������A3.�	
���������A���	���
,�������<��������������	��	�,������������1��	��������������������	�
���������0��

�
6�7� 3�������������������	��������3���'���	�	��3�
���,
���'����������

��������������	�����	�(�9��������������(�������B�������	
������	�
��	���������������,
���'�����,�������	������	������	��	�
,������������9��	������������������	����������0�

�
6�7� 3�����������
���������,��	����&���<
������������,���	��,�������

����������	��������������	���������	�����������@���	�������	��	��
����<�������������������	�6�	�������	���(���������	�10���������
�
�������������70�

�
63����������������������(����	��������	
���(����	���
�G�����������:	�������
������	�(�����C
�����(����	��(��	�����������	��������?�
������������@�

Page 173



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	����	�������������������������

�

	������������(�����(���	����������	������*����������0�3����������
����
����������������	�������������������(���	���
�G�����������:	7�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
����
7���	0�����
���� �=3<�*�3*".&������
�
0��������7
����00����

7��0�5�	0�������
���� �B3<�*�3*".&������6;0���$0#07�
�
6,��
��	��,
�����(����	�����������������	����������������	������0����0�0�	�
�=���*����������7�
�
�
�

Page 174



APPENDIX 3  
 

Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 
 

Comments on Leeds’ draft Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
 

 
 

Balancing the Council's duties as a planning authority 
with its future public health responsibilities 

 
Introduction and background  
 
1. In November 2008, Professor Sir Michael Marmot was asked by the then 

Secretary of State for Health to chair an independent review to propose the most 
effective evidence-based strategies for reducing health inequalities in England.  
In February 2010, the final report ‘Fair Society: Healthy Lives’ was published and 
concluded that reducing health inequalities would require action on the following 
six policy objectives: 

 

• Give every child the best start in life; 
• Enable all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities 

and have control over their lives; 

• Create fair employment and good work for all; 
• Ensure healthy standard of living for all; 
• Create and develop healthy and sustainable places and communities; 
• Strengthen the role and impact of ill-health prevention. 

 
2. As part of the NHS reforms arising from the Health and Social Care Act 2012, 

from April 2013 Public Health responsibilities will transfer from local Primary Care 
Trusts (which will be abolished and replaced by Clinical Commissioning Groups) 
to local authorities.  This shift in responsibility will mean that local authorities will 
become directly accountable for public health services and outcomes from April 
2013.   

 
3. The Council is preparing the Local Development Framework (LDF) for Leeds, 

which consists of a number of Development Plan Documents and Supplementary 
Planning Documents that, together, make up the overall development plan.   

 
4. The Core Strategy is the main document that details the key strategic policies 

and vision of the Local Development Framework (LDF) – setting out the broad 
framework that will guide the delivery of development and investment for Leeds 
over the coming years.  All other LDF documents are directly guided by the Core 
Strategy.  The policies set out in the Core Strategy must be supported by and 
referenced to appropriate evidence.   

 
5. In June 2012, the Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 

identified balancing the duties of a planning authority with public health 
responsibilities (through the Local Development Framework (LDF)) as a potential 
area for consideration during 2012/13.  Recognising the on-going work of the 
Development Plan Panel in finalising the LDF Core Strategy, reference to this 
was again made at the September 2012 meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Health 
and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care).   

 

Page 175



 
Scrutiny process 
 
6. In order to help formulate comments on the draft Core Strategy for Leeds, we 

considered general issues associated with balancing the Council’s duties as a 
planning authority with its future public health responsibilities, at our meeting on 
24 October 2012.  We heard from the following representatives, and would like to 
express our thanks for their input and contribution to our discussions: 

 

• Councillor L Mulherin (Executive Board Member for Health and Wellbeing), 
Leeds City Council 

• Dr. Ian Cameron (Joint Director of Public Health) – NHS Airedale Bradford & 
Leeds/Leeds City Council 

• David Feeney (Head of Forward Planning and Implementation) –City 
Development, Leeds City Council 

 
7. We were presented with and considered the following source documents/ 

information:    
 

• Proposed changes to text within the Core Strategy, to better reflect the health 
issues and priorities for Leeds and strengthen the relationship between 
planning and improving public health outcomes. 

• Core Strategy – Leeds Local Development Framework – Health Background 
Topic Paper (Publication Draft – February 2012)  

• Fair Society, Healthy Lives – The Marmot Review –Strategic Review of Health 
Inequalities in England post 2010 (Executive Summary) 

• Public Health in Leeds City Council – New Responsibilities – Report of 
Director of Public Health to the Executive Board (20 June 2012). 

 
8. The Joint Director of Public Health made reference to an additional document 

produced by Marmot (The Marmot Review: Implications for Spatial Planning), 
which provided evidence on the relationship between aspects of spatial planning, 
the built environment, health and health inequalities. 

 
9. The Joint Director of Public Health advised us that representatives from Public 

Health had contributed to the development of the draft documents presented – in 
particular the proposed changes to text within the Core Strategy –  and had 
considered the following three broad questions, namely: 

 

• Whether the Core Strategy reflected planning’s contribution to health; 
• Whether the Core Strategy covered the breadth of planning’s contribution to 

health; and, 

• In terms of implementation, whether there was sufficient assurance that the 
health and wellbeing aspect of planning would become incorporated into 
development proposals as they occur over future years. 

 
10. While earlier drafts of the Core Strategy had underplayed some of the health 

challenges facing the City and the potential contribution of planning in helping 
address such challenges, the Joint Director of Public Health provided assurance 
that the proposed changes to the Core Strategy text were much more reflective 
of: 

 

• The health issues facing the City,  
• The contributions that planning can make towards addressing the health 

issues facing the City; and  

• The Council’s emerging Public Health duties/ responsibilities. 

Page 176



 
11. We welcome the general assurances provided by the Joint Director of Public 

Health and recognise that the proposed changes to the text of the Core Strategy 
significantly strengthen the published consultation draft. 

 
Comments on the draft Core Strategy and other information presented 
 

General matters 
 

12. We discussed general complexities associated with health and well-being and the 
relationship with inter-dependencies such as employment, income, housing, 
education and the built environment.  As such, we believe it is important that the 
Core Strategy provides a sufficient framework for areas of the City that have 
historically had higher levels of deprivation, to benefit from improved greater 
consideration of the impact of planning and development proposals on the health 
of the City and local communities.   

 
Greenspace availability 

 

13. We were advised that the general availability and/or provision of green space 
would form part of the ‘site allocation’ process.  We were advised that this 
process would consider where different aspects of provision (including green 
space, housing etc.) should be allocated across the City.   

 
14. We recognise the difficulties associated with creating additional open/ green 

spaces in existing highly populated urban areas.  We welcome the Core 
Strategy’s overall policy aim to improve opportunities for walking and cycling, and  
access to green infrastructure across the City.  However, we believe the 
protection of existing playing pitches forms an essential part of the general policy 
objectives and is fundamental to the Council’s future public health 
responsibilities.   

 
15. Furthermore, where issues associated with the re-provision of playing pitches 

elsewhere in the City are considered, the ‘elsewhere’ needs to be considered 
within the context and demographics of those communities where the original 
provision may be lost. 

 
Health Background Topic paper (February 2012) 

 

16. We were concerned about the rapid Health Impact Assessment process adopted 
to consider the health implications / considerations of planning (outlined in the 
Health Background Topic paper).  We believe this reinforces and reflects the 
position that, historically, health implications have not been considered early 
enough within the planning/ development processes.   

 
17. Nonetheless, we acknowledge the assurances provided by the Joint Director of 

Public Health, and details of a much closer working relationship between City 
Development and Public Health that has developed over recent months.  We are 
hopeful that such closer working will continue into the future.  We welcome the 
proposal to establish a health and planning reference group, and believe this has 
the potential to ensure the policy objectives outlined in the draft Core Strategy are 
considered and implemented in practice. 

 
18. We queried the accuracy of the population growth projections (approx. 200,000 

by 2033 (20 years)) detailed in the Health Background Topic paper (February 
2012)), as the projections represented more than double the current health 

Page 177



dynamic in the City (i.e. the difference between current rates of births and deaths 
in the City).  Such population growth projections will have significant potential 
implications across the City – for example in terms of infrastructure and the 
availability of affordable housing across the City.   

 
19. We were advised that changes to the affordable housing policy were proposed, 

which would make the policy applicable to all residential developments (from 1 
property upwards).  Given the relationship between housing and health, we 
welcome this proposal.  

 
20. However, we believe population projections and the associated potential 

implications for the City’s infrastructure need to be material considerations for the 
health and planning reference group.   

 
21. As part of our consideration of the Health Background Topic paper, we discussed 

some of the changes made to the Core Strategy policies as a result of the Health 
Impact Assessment work undertaken.  We made specific reference to ‘Improving 
opportunities for local people to get jobs through S106 employment opportunities’ 
and concerns among members around the strength of language used.   Despite 
the suggestion that with a policy in place, the issues raised were associated the 
application and implementation of the policy, we believe that wording of relevant 
policies should be strengthened to read ‘Local people to get jobs through S106 
employment opportunities’.   

 
22. Given the date of the Health Background Topic paper (i.e. February 2012), it is 

disappointing that there is no reference to the additional document (highlighted by 
the Joint Director of Public Health) produced by Marmot (The Marmot Review: 
Implications for Spatial Planning), which provided evidence on the relationship 
between aspects of spatial planning, the built environment, health and health 
inequalities.  We understand that this report was published in 2011. 

 
Future advice and guidance on public health  

 

23. We discussed the range of existing and anticipated public health guidance from 
the National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) to local 
authorities.  We recognised the need to take into account the best available 
evidence and guidance when considering the contribution of planning in 
improving public health.  However we also recognised the organic nature of  
evidence and guidance, which would therefore be difficult to reflect in a long-term 
strategy document.   

 
24. We acknowledge the advice regarding the importance of the ongoing involvement 

of Public Health professionals within the planning process, and the key role of the 
Joint Director of Public Health in ensuring that the most up-to-date guidance / 
evidence is made available and considered by the health and planning reference 
group. 

 
25. However, within the Core Strategy, we believe it would be useful to specifically 

reflect on the important role of NICE (or any successor body) and other 
recognised health organisations in developing and/or updating public health 
guidance for local authorities.  We believe this is particularly important where 
such guidance may relate to the contribution of planning in addressing public 
health matters, and therefore may be a material consideration of the health and 
planning reference group. 

 

Page 178



 
Conclusion 
 

26. We hope that our comments and observations inform the ongoing discussions 
and consideration of the draft Core Strategy, including those held at the Scrutiny 
Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) and the Executive Board, ahead of the 
final draft being presented for agreement at Full Council in November 2012. 

 
 
Councillor John Illingworth 
Chair, Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social Care) 
 
October 2012 
 
 

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Transformation of Health and Social Care Services in Leeds
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8

	8 Review of Children's Congenital Heart Services in England; Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber) - Referral to the Secretary of State for Health (Draft Report)
	Appendix

	9 Work Schedule
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


